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Partl. Financial Information
Item 1. Financial Statements

Net revenue:
Outsourced services
Products
Total net revenue
Cost of sales:
Outsourced services
Products
Total cost of sales
Gross profit (loss)
Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Severance
Operating loss
Interest expense, net
Other (income), net
Loss before taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Net loss
Loss per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

Dividends declared per common share

Sypris Solutions, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

July 3, July §, July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
$ 17,587 $ 32942 § 37344 $ 64,814

5917 7,814 13,098 12,951
23,504 40,756 50,442 77,765
18,193 35,326 39,170 71,112
4,589 5,464 9,823 9,844
22,782 40,790 48,993 80,956
722 (34) 1,449 (3,191)
5,241 7,327 11,744 16,445
90 195 214 528
38 281 522 566
(4,647) (7,837) (11,031) (20,730)
964 1,154 1,840 1,488
(409) (575) (2,571) (754)
(5,202) (8,416) (10,300) (21,464)
1 0 2 (15)
$ (5,203) $ (8,416) $ (10,302) § (21,449)
$ 026) $ 0.43) $ 0.52) $ (1.09)
$ 026) $ 0.43) 3 0.52) $ (1.09)
19,749 19,701 19,725 19,675
19,749 19,701 19,725 19,675
$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 000 § 0.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Sypris Solutions, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
(in thousands)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
July 3, July 5, July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Net loss $ (5,203) $ 8,416) $ (10,302) $ (21,449)
Other comprehensive loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments (669) (395) (699) (1,053)
Comprehensive loss $ (5,872) (8,811) $ (11,001) $ (22,502)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Sypris Solutions, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except for share data)

July 3, December 31,
2016 2016
(unaudited)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,819 $ 1,349
Restricted cash — current 6,000 0
Accounts receivable, net 12,277 12,394
Inventory, net 20,622 20,192
Other current assets 3,624 4,459
Assets held for sale 0 3,230
Total current assets 44342 41,624
Property, plant and equipment, net 22,330 22,178
Other assets 3,142 3,090
Total assets $ 69,814 $ 66,892
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 10,949 § 11,311
Accrued liabilities 14,504 11,661
Revolving credit facility 4,853 2,132
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 1,912 1,714
Total current liabilities 32,218 26,818
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations 10,862 8,780
Note payable — related party 6,500 5,500
Other liabilities 10,820 6,082
Total liabilities 60,400 47,180
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 975,150 shares authorized; no shares issued 0 0
Series A preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, 24,850 shares authorized; no shares issued 0 0
Common stock, non-voting, par value $0.01 per share, 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued 0 0
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 30,000,000 shares authorized; 21,359,736 shares issued and
21,307,044 outstanding in 2016 and 20,826,236 shares issued and 20,776,544 outstanding in 2015 213 208
Additional paid-in capital 152,775 152,077
Retained deficit (117,114) (106,812)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (26,459) (25,760)
Treasury stock, 52,692 and 49,692 shares in 2016 and 2015, respectively (1) (1)
Total stockholders’ equity 9,414 19,712
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 69814 § 66,892

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Sypris Solutions, Inc.
Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
(in thousands)

Six Months Ended

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation expense
Deferred revenue recognized
Deferred loan costs recognized
Gain on the sale of assets
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory
Other noncash items
Contributions to pension plans
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net
Proceeds from sale of assets
Change in restricted cash
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on Term Loan
Proceeds from note payable - Meritor
Proceeds from related party note payable
Net change in debt under revolving credit agreements
Debt issuance and modification costs
Indirect repurchase of shares of minimum statutory tax withholdings
Cash dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

July 3, July 5,
2016 2015
(Unaudited)

(10,302) § (21,449)
3,678 4,950
703 501
0 (4,200)

435 630
(2,391) 0
86 1,125
(505) (1,587)
0 (281)

151 25317
(494) 1,400
215) (3,006)
(369) (14,026)
2,237 (355)
(6,986) (10,981)
(115) (883)
11,086 0
(6,000) 0
4,971 (883)
857) 0
0 3,047
1,000 5,500
2,721 251)
379) (1,369)
0 77)
0 (410)
2,485 6,440
470 (5,424)
1,349 7,003
1,819 $ 1,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




Sypris Solutions, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1) Nature of Business

2

All references to “Sypris,” the “Company,” “we” or “our” include Sypris Solutions, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Sypris is a diversified
provider of outsourced services and specialty products. The Company performs a wide range of manufacturing, engineering, design, and other technical
services, often under multi-year, sole-source contracts with corporations and government agencies in the markets for truck components and assemblies
and aerospace and defense electronics. The Company provides such services through its two segments, Sypris Technologies, Inc. (Sypris Technologies)
and Sypris Electronics, LLC (Sypris Electronics). See Note 11, “Segment Data,” to the consolidated financial statements.

?2) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sypris Solutions, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, and have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Company’s operations are domiciled in the United States (U.S.), Mexico and the United Kingdom (U.K.) and serve a wide variety of domestic and
international customers. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. These unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect, in
the opinion of management, all material adjustments (which include only normal recurring adjustments) necessary to fairly state the results of operations,
financial position and cash flows for the periods presented, and the disclosures herein are adequate to make the information presented not misleading.
Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Actual results for the three and six months ended July 3, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year
ending December 31, 2016. These unaudited consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements,
and notes thereto, for the year ended December 31,2015 as presented in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.

A3) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This ASU
supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in “Accounting Standard Codification 605 - Revenue Recognition” and most industry-specific
guidance. The standard requires that entities recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which a company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new guidance will also require new disclosures
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. ASU 2014-09 was originally effective
for us on January 1, 2017; however, in July 2015 the FASB decided to defer the effective date by one year. Early application is not permitted, but
reporting entities may choose to adopt the standard as of the original effective date. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative
effect transition method. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the adoption of ASU 2014-09 on its results of operations, financial position
and cash flows. The Company does not intend to early adopt this standard.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements-Going Concern. The new guidance requires
management to assess if there is substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for each annual and interim period. If
conditions or events give rise to substantial doubt, disclosures are required. ASU 2014-15 is effective for the annual period ending after December 15,
2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter; early application is permitted. The Company does not intend to early adopt this standard. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this ASU on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.




In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt
Issuance Costs. The amendments in this ASU 2015-03 require that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance
sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for
debt issuance costs are not affected by the amendments in this ASU 2015-03. In August 2015 the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-15, Interest - Imputation of
Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Presentation and Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements -
Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to Staff Announcement at June 18, 2015 EITF Meeting. ASU 2015-15 was issued to address presentation or
subsequent measurement of debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements that were not found in ASU 2015-03. Given the absence of
authoritative guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the ASU provides that the SEC staff would not
object to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing the deferred debt issuance costs ratably over the
term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. These standards are
effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,2015, and should be applied retrospectively. Early
adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this guidance January 1,2016. As a result of adoption, debt issuance costs of $1,220,000 were reclassified
from assets to reduce long-term-debt as of December 31,2015.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, which simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory. It replaces the current lower of cost
or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. The standard is effective for public entities for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, and interim periods therein. Early adoption is permitted. The new guidance must be applied prospectively. The adoption of this
standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The new standard was issued to increase transparency and
comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. This standard affects any entity that enters into a lease, with some specified scope exemptions. The guidance in this update supersedes
FASB ASC 840, Leases. The amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this ASU on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting (ASU 2016-09) requiring an
entity to record all excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies as an income tax benefit or expense in the income statement. ASU 2016-09 will also require an
entity to elect an accounting policy to either estimate the number of forfeitures or account for forfeitures when they occur. ASU 2016-09 becomes
effective for the Company during the first quarter 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on its
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations,
which further clarifies the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations, and in April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, Revenue
from contracts with customers (Topic 606): Identifying performance obligations and licensing, an update on identifying performance obligations and
accounting for licenses of intellectual property. Additionally, in May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-12, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Topic 606): Narrow-scope improvements and practical expedients, which includes amendments for enhanced clarification of the guidance. This
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2017 including interim periods within those fiscal years and early adoption is
permitted. We are evaluating the impact that adoption of this guidance will have on our consolidated financial statements.

“) Management’s Plans

Given the Company’s loss of market share in commercial vehicle manufacturing in early 2015 due to the nonrenewal of a supply agreement with
Dana Holding Corporation (“Dana”), and the recent unfavorable growth trends and softness in commercial vehicle manufacturing and the oil and gas
markets served by the Company, management has developed various profit recovery and protection plans and is evaluating strategic alternatives to
optimize asset values in each of the Company’s segments. Management engaged advisors during various periods to provide recommendations for cost
reductions and other actions that can be taken to minimize losses and ultimately return to profitability. Management prepared a revised forecast during
early 2016 with plans to further reduce costs, optimize cash flow and remain in compliance with its debt covenant requirements throughout 2016. The
Company completed a number of its profit recovery and protection actions during 2015 and the first half of 2016, including: (i) the Toluca Sale-
Leaseback (defined below), (ii) the sale of certain assets used in the Company’s manufacturing facility in Morganton, North Carolina within the Sypris
Technologies segment, (iii) reductions in workforce at all locations, and (iv) other reductions in employment costs through reduced work schedules,
senior management pay reductions, deferral of merit increases and certain benefit payments. The Company restructured its debt and has received the
benefit of cash infusions from Gill Family Capital Management, Inc. (‘GFCM’) in the form of subordinated promissory note obligations totaling
$6,500,000 in principal through the first halfof2016.




Demand in the commercial vehicle industry has softened beginning in the fourth quarter of 2015 along with other durable and non-durable
goods sectors in the North America economy. In response to the reduced demand, management implemented reductions in selling, general and
administrative expense and labor expense during the first half of 2016. Although the expected benefits of the cost reductions were partially offset by the
impact of minor investments and severance required to enable the cost reductions, the actions are expected to contribute to improved liquidity during
2016. Additional cost reductions may be implemented during the second half of 2016 if the market softens further.

Management has identified a number of new customer opportunities that are expected to provide higher gross margin opportunities, even at
lower volumes. Management is implementing operational efficiencies that are expected to enable reductions in the machinery set-up time for new
commercial vehicle orders which should enable the Company to quote on customer requirements that are higher margin but with somewhat shorter run
lengths. These new business activities are anticipated to enable the Company to diversify its revenue sources over a larger and more profitable customer
base.

One of the additional actions implemented by management during the first quarter of 2016 was to consummate the sale and partial lease back of
its facility located in Toluca Mexico, which generated gross proceeds of approximately $12,182,000. Of these proceeds, $6,000,000 was deposited into a
cash collateral account, to be held for up to one year as additional collateral for the Term Loan (see Note 10 “Debt”). Management will continue to
operate in Toluca, but given the reduction in Sypris Technologies’ revenues in 2015 and the overall downturn in the commercial vehicle markets
beginning in the fourth quarter of 2015, management determined that the underutilized Toluca real estate value could be better optimized with a sale and
lease back arrangement where some but not all of the facility would continue to be occupied and managed by Sypris Technologies.

The oil and gas industry has experienced significant price volatility, and as a result the Company’s customers are delaying capital expenditures
that support their growth and maintenance projects. The Company has identified some capacity reallocation opportunities between plants in the United
States and Mexico. The Company has initiated the process of qualifying production for certain components in Mexico that are currently produced in the
United States and completed the qualification for the first group of these components. The Company expects this capacity reallocation may accelerate
during 2016 as the capital necessary to fund the reallocation becomes available and the qualification process for the production is complete.

Management implemented certain cost reductions at the corporate headquarters that are expected to improve profitability and cash flow
throughout 2016. Salary reductions and other SG&A cost reductions were implemented during the first half of 2016 that management believes will
continue to benefit the Company throughout future periods. Additional cost reductions have been identified in the area of professional services,
administration and lease expenses.

On August 16, 2016, the Company completed the sale of certain assets, intellectual property, contracts and other related assets of Sypris
Electronics (the “CSS Sale”) comprised principally of its SioMetrics, Cyber Range, Information Security Solutions and Data Systems product lines (see
Note 17 “Subsequent Events”). The retained portion of the Sypris Electronics segment will continue to provide electronic manufacturing and design
support services to customers in the aerospace, defense, medical and severe environment markets, among others.

o) Morganton Sale

On July 9, 2015, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) to sell certain assets used in the Company’s
manufacturing facility in Morganton, North Carolina, to its largest customer, Meritor, Inc. (“Meritor”). The Company retained the Morganton plant’s axle
shaft manufacturing lines and certain related assets, intellectual property and inventories, which were transitioned to the Company’s Louisville, Kentucky
plant in October 2015. All other Morganton equipment, related assets and intellectual property were sold to Meritor (the “Morganton Sale”) for
$10,500,000 in cash paid at the closing and other consideration. Meritor purchased related inventories and accounts receivable and assumed or released
certain accounts payable and other accrued liabilities, for $2,000,000 (subject to customary post-closing adjustments to actual). Meritor also purchased
the Morganton building and real estate for $3,200,000. The total proceeds received of $15,700,000, primarily in consideration for the Morganton sale,
were used to pay down the Company’s prior senior secured debt. As a result of the Morganton sale, the Company recognized a gain of $7,744,000.

At closing, the parties also entered into an amendment to a secured promissory note with Meritor in an original principal amount of $3,047,000
(the “Meritor Note”) to increase the principal balance by $412,000, effective July 9, 2015. The parties also agreed to increase the Meritor Note by an
additional $321,000 in September 2015 to reflect certain roof repairs required at the Morganton facility. The Company repaid the Meritor Note on
October 30,2015.




) Toluca Sale-Leaseback

On October 30, 2015, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent to sell and lease-back its property and buildings in Toluca,
Mexico, which is part of the Sypris Technologies Group. As such, the Company concluded that the assets qualified for Assets Held for Sale accounting in
accordance with ASC 205 as of December 31,2015. The assets had a net book value 0£$3,230,000 as of December 31,2015.

On March 9, 2016, Sypris Technologies Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. (“Seller”), a subsidiary of the Company, concluded its sale of the 24-acre
Toluca property pursuant to an agreement with Promotora y Desarrolladora Pulso Inmobiliario, S.C. (together with its affiliates and assignees, “Buyer”)
for 215,000,000 Mexican Pesos, or approximately $12,182,000 in U.S. currency. Simultaneously, the Seller and the Buyer entered a long-term lease of the
9 acres and buildings currently occupied by Seller and needed for its ongoing business in Toluca (collectively, the “Toluca Sale-Leaseback™). The
Company incurred transaction related expenses of $1,116,000. The Company deposited $6,000,000 of the proceeds from the sale-leaseback into a Cash
Collateral Account, to be held for up to one year as additional collateral for the Term Loan (see Note 10 “Debt” for further discussion on the Term Loan).
This amount has been classified as restricted cash on the consolidated balance sheets as of July 3,2016.

As a result of the Toluca Sale-Leaseback, the Company initially recorded a capital lease of $3,315,000, which is included in property plant and
equipment. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of $2,370,000 during the six months ended July 3, 2016, which is included in other income, net in
the consolidated statement of operations, and recorded a deferred gain of $5,537,000, which will be recognized over the ten year lease term. The
Company’s base rent, which is denominated in U.S. currency, is $936,000 annually, adjusted based on U.S. CPI with certain cap conditions.

The following assets have been segregated and included in assets held for sale in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,2015 (in
thousands):

December 31,

2015
Land and land improvements $ 1,568
Buildings and building improvements 3,658
Accumulated depreciation (1,996)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 3,230

(@) Loss Per Common Share

The Company computes earnings per share using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation formula that determines earnings per
share for common stock and participating securities. Restricted stock granted by the Company is considered a participating security since it contains a
non-forfeitable right to dividends.

Our potentially dilutive securities include potential common shares related to our stock options and restricted stock. Diluted earnings per share
considers the impact of potentially dilutive securities except in periods in which there is a loss because the inclusion of the potential common shares
would have an anti-dilutive effect. Diluted earnings per share excludes the impact of common shares related to our stock options in periods in which the
option exercise price is greater than the average market price of our common stock for the period. For the three and six months ended July 3, 2016 and
July 5, 2015, diluted weighted average common shares do not include the impact of any outstanding stock options and unvested compensation-related
shares because the effect of these items on diluted net loss would be anti-dilutive.




Areconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per common share is as follows (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
July 3, July 5, July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Loss attributable to stockholders:
Net loss as reported $ (5,203) $ (8,416) $ (10,302) $ (21,449)
Less distributed and undistributed earnings allocable to restricted award
holders 0 0 0 0
Less dividends declared attributable to restricted award holders 0 0 0 0
Net loss allocable to common stockholders $ (5,203) $ (8416) $ (10,302) $ (21,449)
Loss per common share attributable to stockholders:
Basic $ 0.26) $ 0.43) $ 0.52) $ (1.09)
Diluted $ 0.26) $ 0.43) $ 0.52) $ (1.09)
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 19,749 19,701 19,725 19,675
Weighted average additional shares assuming conversion of potential common
shares 0 0 0 0
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted 19,749 19,701 19,725 19,675
@8) Inventory
Inventory consists of the following (in thousands):
July 3, December 31,
2016 2015
(Unaudited)
Raw materials $ 12,715 $ 12,388
Work in process 10,790 10,366
Finished goods 2,816 3,167
Reserve for excess and obsolete inventory (5,699) (5,729)
$ 20,622 $ 20,192
) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):
July 3, December 31,
2016 2015
(Unaudited)
Land and land improvements $ 219 $ 219
Buildings and building improvements 18,305 18,305
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 124,821 123,935
Construction in progress 677 759
144,022 143,218
Accumulated depreciation (121,692) (121,040)
$ 22,330 $ 22,178




(10)  Debt

Debt consists of the following:

July 3, December 31,
2016 2015
(Unaudited)
Current:
Revolving Credit facility $ 4853 § 2,132
Current portion of long term debt 1,714 1,714
Current portion of capital lease obligation 198 0
Current debt $ 6,765 $ 3,846
Long Term:
Term loan $ 9,143 § 10,000
Note payable — related party 6,500 5,500
Capital lease obligation 3,066 0
Less unamortized debt issuance and modification costs (1,347) (1,220)
Long term debt net of unamortized debt costs $ 17362 $ 14,280

Note Payable — Related Party

During 2015, the Company received the proceeds of subordinated indebtedness from GFCM in an amount of $5,500,000. On February 26,2016,
the Company further amended the GFCM note to increase the amount by $1,000,000 to $6,500,000. GFCM is an entity controlled by the Company’s
president and chief executive officer, Jeffrey T. Gill and one of our directors, R. Scott Gill. GFCM, Jeffrey T. Gill and R. Scott Gill are significant
beneficial stockholders of the Company. The promissory note bears interest at a rate of 8.00% per year. All principal and interest on the promissory note,
as amended, will be due and payable on January 30,2019.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan

On October 30, 2015, the Company secured debt financing consisting of a $12,000,000 term loan (“Term Loan”) and a $15,000,000 revolving
credit facility (“Revolving Credit Facility”). Proceeds from the two new financing arrangements (collectively the “Loan Agreements”) were used in part to
repay the senior secured debt with a prior lender and the Meritor Note. Borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility is determined by a
weekly borrowing base collateral calculation that includes specified percentages of the value of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, less certain
reserves and subject to certain other adjustments.

On February 25, 2016, the Company entered into an amendment (the “Term Loan Amendment”) to the Term Loan and an amendment (the
“Revolving Credit Amendment”) to the Revolving Credit Facility (together, the “Amendments”). The Amendments increased the Company’s borrowing
capability under its Revolving Credit Facility and provided for an agreement on use of proceeds from the sale of its Toluca, Mexico property and
buildings, as described below.

As a result of the Term Loan Amendment, the Company deposited $6,000,000 of the proceeds of the sale-leaseback of its Toluca, Mexico
property and buildings (the “Toluca Sale-Leaseback”) into a Cash Collateral Account, to be held as additional collateral for the Term Loan. Amounts
deposited in the Cash Collateral Account that are subsequently used to pay down the principal of the Term Loan must be accompanied by an additional
amount equal to the present value of the avoided interest associated with that principal payment. The Term Loan Amendment also permitted the
Company to retain the remaining balance of the proceeds from Toluca Sale-Leaseback, and increased the interest rate of the Term Loan by 1.0%.

In addition, under the Amendments, the Company’s minimum excess availability provision was reduced from $4,000,000 to $3,000,000. The
lender further agreed to remove certain reserves which had been established against the Company’s “borrowing base.”

The Company’s obligations under each of the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan, as amended, continue to be guaranteed by the
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all assets of the Company and the guarantors.
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The Loan Agreements, as amended, contain a number of customary representations and warranties, affirmative, negative and financial
maintenance covenants, events of default and remedies upon default, including acceleration and rights to foreclose on the collateral securing each lender.
If the Company’s borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility falls below $3,000,000, the Company must maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio of at least 1 to 1, as measured on a trailing twelve months’ basis.

The classification of debt as of July 3,2016 and December 31,2015 considers debt outstanding under the Loan Agreements on a long-term basis.
However, the Revolving Credit Facility allows the lender to establish certain reserves against the borrowing base which could, under certain
circumstances, cause a potential event of default. Because such an event is not objectively measureable in advance and because the Company is required
to maintain a lock-box arrangement, ASC 470-10-45 requires the otherwise long-term revolving advances to be classified as a current liability. As a result,
all borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility have been classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as a current liability.

On August 16,2016, the Company repaid the Term Loan in full and paid down the Revolving Credit Facility with proceeds generated from the
CSS Sale (see Note 17 “Subsequent Events”). In connection with the repayment of the Term Loan, the $6,000,000 balance of the Cash Collateral Account
was released.

Capital Lease Obligation

On March 9, 2016, the Company completed the sale of its 24-acre Toluca property pursuant to an agreement with Promotora y Desarrolladora
Pulso Inmobiliario, S.C. (together with its affiliates and assignees, “Buyer”) for 215,000,000 Mexican Pesos, or approximately $12,182,000 in U.S.
currency. Simultaneously, the Company entered a long-term lease of the 9 acres and buildings currently occupied by the Company and needed for its
ongoing business in Toluca (see Note 6 “Toluca Sale-Leaseback™). The Company incurred transaction related expenses of $1,116,000.

The Company recorded an initial gain on the sale of $2,370,000 during the six months ended July 3, 2016, which is included in other income,
net in the consolidated income statement, and recorded a deferred gain of $5,155,000 as of July 3, 2016, which will be recognized over the ten year lease
term. The Company’s base rent, which is denominated in U.S. currency, is $936,000 annually, adjusted based on U.S. CPI with certain cap conditions. As
aresult of the Toluca Sale-Leaseback, the Company recorded a capital lease obligation of $3,264,000 for the building.

The future minimum payments for capital leases as of July 3, 2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Capital Lease

2016 (remaining 6 months) $ 274
2017 503
2018 549
2019 549
2020 503
Thereafter 2,834

Total future payments 5,212
Less: Amount representing interest (1,948)

Present value of future minimum payments 3,264
Less: Current portion (198)

Long term portion $ 3,066

11) Segment Data

The Company is organized into two business groups, Sypris Technologies and Sypris Electronics. These segments are each managed separately
because of the distinctions between the products, services, markets, customers, technologies and workforce skills of the segments. Sypris Technologies
provides manufacturing services for a variety of customers that outsource forged and finished steel components and subassemblies. Sypris Technologies
also manufactures high-pressure closures and other fabricated products. Sypris Electronics provides manufacturing and technical services as an
outsourced service provider and manufactures complex data storage systems, trusted solutions for identity management, cryptographic key distribution
and cyber analytics (see Note 17 “Subsequent Events”). There was no intersegment net revenue recognized in any of the periods presented.
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The following table presents financial information for the reportable segments of the Company (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
July 3, July 5, July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Net revenue from unaffiliated customers:
Sypris Technologies $ 14,769 $ 32,010 $ 32,596 $ 60,080
Sypris Electronics 8,735 8,746 17,846 17,685
$ 23,504 $ 40,756 $ 50,442 $ 77,765
Gross profit (loss):
Sypris Technologies $ (260) $ 581 § ©16) $ (3,523)
Sypris Electronics 982 (615) 2,365 332
$ 722§ 34) $ 1,449 $ (3,191)
Operating (loss) income:
Sypris Technologies $ (2,050) $ (2,370) $ (5,024) $ (11,738)
Sypris Electronics (909) (3,111) (1,969) 4,701)
General, corporate and other (1,688) (2,356) (4,038) (4,291)
$ (4,647) $ (7,837) $ (11,031) § (20,730)
July 3, December 31,
2016 2016
(Unaudited)
Total assets:
Sypris Technologies $ 36,838 $ 38,968
Sypris Electronics 23,534 23,845
General, corporate and other 9,442 4,079
$ 69,814 § 66,892

12) Commitments and Contingencies

The provision for estimated warranty costs is recorded at the time of sale and periodically adjusted to reflect actual experience. The Company’s
warranty liability, which is included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets as of July 3, 2016 and December 31, 2015, was $839,000
and $830,000, respectively. The Company’s warranty expense for the six months ended July 3, 2016 and July 5, 2015 was $52,000 and $83,000,
respectively.

Additionally, the Company sells three and five-year extended warranties for one of its link encryption products. The revenue from the extended
warranties is deferred and recognized ratably over the contractual term. As of July 3, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had deferred $330,000
and $495,000, respectively, related to extended warranties.

The Company bears insurance risk as a member of a group captive insurance entity for certain general liability, automobile and workers’
compensation insurance programs and a self-insured employee health program. The Company records estimated liabilities for its insurance programs
based on information provided by the third-party plan administrators, historical claims experience, expected costs of claims incurred but not paid, and
expected costs to settle unpaid claims. The Company monitors its estimated insurance-related liabilities on a quarterly basis. As facts change, it may
become necessary to make adjustments that could be material to the Company’s consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The Company
believes that its present insurance coverage and level of accrued liabilities are adequate.

The Company is involved in certain litigation and contract issues arising in the normal course of business. While the outcome of these matters

cannot, at this time, be predicted in light of the uncertainties inherent therein, management does not expect that these matters will have a material adverse
effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.
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The Company has various current and previously-owned facilities subject to a variety of environmental regulations. The Company has received
certain indemnifications either from companies previously owning these facilities or from purchasers of those facilities. As of July 3, 2016 and
December 31,2015, no amounts were accrued for any environmental matters.

As of July 3, 2016, the Company had outstanding purchase commitments of approximately $9,759,000, primarily for the acquisition of
inventory and manufacturing equipment.

The Company accounts for loss contingencies in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Estimated loss
contingencies are accrued only if the loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. With respect to a particular loss
contingency, it may be probable that a loss has occurred but the estimate of the loss is within a wide range or undeterminable. If the Company deems an
amount within the range to be a better estimate than any other amount within the range, that amount will be accrued. However, if no amount within the
range is a better estimate than any other amount, the minimum amount of the range is accrued.

During the fourth quarter of 2015, the Company gave notification regarding its intention to not renew the lease for its Tampa, FL facility, which
will expire on December 31, 2016. During the first quarter of 2016, the Company entered into lease negotiations to extend the current lease for a smaller
portion of the facility, but was unable to reach an agreement on the economics of a lease renewal with its current landlord. On May 3, 2016, the Company
entered a lease for an alternative facility, which it expects to occupy upon the expiration of the current lease. The Company, Sypris Electronics and the
landlord of the Tampa facility are currently involved in litigation over certain terms of the lease (see Item 1, “Legal Proceedings”). As such, it is
reasonably possible that the Company may be required to make certain repairs to the current facility upon exit. The current estimate of the Company’s
reasonably possible loss contingency is from no liability to $4,000,000. While the Company intends to vigorously dispute these claims, the Company
accrued $500,000 during the six months ended July 3, 2016 related to its estimated potential obligation under the lease. This accrual is included in
accrued liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of July 3,2016.

(13) Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes includes federal, state, local and foreign taxes. The Company’s effective tax rate varies from period to period due
to the proportion of foreign and domestic pre-tax income expected to be generated by the Company. The Company provides for income taxes for its
domestic operations at a statutory rate of 35% and for its foreign operations at a statutory rate of 30% in 2016 and 2015. Reconciling items between the
federal statutory rate and the effective tax rate also include the expected usage of federal net operating loss carryforwards, state income taxes, valuation
allowances and certain other permanent differences.

The Company recognizes liabilities or assets for the deferred tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets or
liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements in accordance with ASC 740, Income Taxes. These temporary differences will result in
taxable or deductible amounts in future years when the reported amounts of assets or liabilities are recovered or settled. ASC 740 requires that a valuation
allowance be established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company evaluates its
deferred tax position on a quarterly basis and valuation allowances are provided as necessary. During this evaluation, the Company reviews its forecast of
income in conjunction with other positive and negative evidence surrounding the realizability of its deferred tax assets to determine if a valuation
allowance is needed. Based on its current forecast, the Company has established a valuation allowance against the domestic net deferred tax asset. Until
an appropriate level and characterization of profitability is attained, the Company expects to continue to maintain a valuation allowance on its net
deferred tax assets related to future U.S. and non-U.S. tax benefits.

As of July 3,2016 and December 31,2015, the Company has no undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries that are classified as permanently
reinvested. The Company did not repatriate any funds to the U.S. during 2015 and expects the repatriation of any available non-U.S. cash holdings during
2016 will be limited to the amount of undistributed earnings as of December 31, 2015. The loss recognized by the Company’s Mexican operations
during 2015 and the first half of 2016 reduced the undistributed earnings of that entity and the Company has therefore recognized a deferred income tax
benefit equal to the reduction in the U.S deferred tax liability and a corresponding increase in the deferred tax asset valuation allowance. Should the U.S.
valuation allowance be released at some future date, the U.S. tax on foreign earnings not permanently reinvested might have a material effect on our
effective tax rate.




(14) Employee Benefit Plans

Pension expense (benefit) consisted of the following (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
July 3, July 5, July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 2016 2015
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Service cost $ 0 3 3 9 3 3 7
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 411 411 837 845
Net amortizations, deferrals and other costs 158 177 332 347
Expected return on plan assets (489) (558) (985) (1,122)

$ 80 § 33§ 187 § 77

(15) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The Company’s accumulated other comprehensive loss consists of employee benefit-related adjustments and foreign currency translation
adjustments.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of the following (in thousands):

July 3, December 31,
2015 2015
(Unaudited)
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (10,253) $ 9,554)
Employee benefit related adjustments — U.S. (16,177) (16,177)
Employee benefit related adjustments — Mexico (29) 29)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (26,459) $ (25,760)

(16) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at their carrying
amount which approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity of those instruments. The carrying amount of debt outstanding at July 3, 2016
approximates fair value, and is based upon a market approach (Level 2).

a7 Subsequent Events

On August 16,2016, the Company completed the sale of certain assets, intellectual property, contracts and other assets of Sypris Electronics (the
“CSS Sale”) comprised principally of its SioMetrics, Cyber Range, Information Security Solutions and Data Systems product lines. The assets were sold
for $42,000,000 in cash consideration, $1,500,000 of which is to be held in escrow for up to 12 months in connection with certain customary
representations, warranties, covenants and indemnifications of the Company. A portion of the proceeds from the CSS Sale was used to pay off the Term
Loan and pay down the outstanding balances under the Revolving Credit Facility. The retained portion of the Sypris Electronics segment will continue
to provide electronic manufacturing and design support services to customers in the aerospace, defense, medical and severe environment markets, among
others.




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a diversified provider of outsourced services and specialty products. We perform a wide range of manufacturing, engineering, design and
other technical services, often under sole-source contracts with corporations and government agencies principally in the markets for industrial
manufacturing and aerospace and defense electronics.

We are organized into two business groups, Sypris Technologies and Sypris Electronics. Sypris Technologies, which is comprised of Sypris
Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries, generates revenue primarily from the sale of manufacturing services to customers in the market for truck
components and assemblies and from the sale of products to the energy and chemical markets. Sypris Electronics, which is comprised of Sypris
Electronics, LLC and one subsidiary, generates revenue primarily from the sale of manufacturing services, technical services and products to customers in
the market for acrospace and defense electronics, trusted solutions for identity management, cryptographic key distribution and cyber analytics.

We focus on those markets where we have the expertise, qualifications and leadership position to sustain a competitive advantage. We target our
resources to support the needs of industry leaders that embrace multi-year contractual relationships as a strategic component of their supply chain
management. These contracts, many of which are sole-source by part number, historically, have been renewed for sufficient periods to enable us to invest
in leading-edge processes or technologies to help our customers remain competitive. The productivity, flexibility and economies of scale that can result
offer an important opportunity for differentiating ourselves from our competitors when it comes to cost, quality, reliability and customer service.

Sypris Technologies Outlook

In North America, production levels for light, medium and heavy duty trucks steadily increased from a low in the depressed economic
environment of 2008 and 2009 through 2015, but are anticipated to decrease from 2015 to 2016. Production levels for the remainder of 2016 are
expected to remain relatively consistent with the lower levels experienced in the first half of 2016 and increase slightly in 2017. Oil and gas markets,
served by our engineered products line of Tube Tums® products, have been impacted, as some of our customers’ revenues and near term capital
expenditures have declined along with oil prices generally. However, the oil and gas outlook appears to be stabilizing as oil prices show signs of recovery
and domestic pipeline projects continue to be active.

Sypris Electronics Outlook

We have faced challenges within Sypris Electronics, such as the uncertainty in the worldwide macroeconomic climate and its impact on
aerospace and defense spending patterns globally, the emergence of new competitors to our product and service offerings, as well as federal government
spending uncertainties in the U.S. and the allocation of funds by the U.S. Department of Defense.

Sypris Electronics’ revenue had declined from 2009 through 2014 primarily due to our inability to replace the declining demand for certain
legacy products and services with competitive new offerings. However, revenues increased in 2015 and in the first half of 2016, as we have begun to
generate revenue from the ramp-up of new electronic manufacturing services and other technical service programs.

On August 16,2016, the Company completed the sale of certain assets, intellectual property, contracts and other assets of Sypris Electronics (the
“CSS Sale”) comprised principally of its SioMetrics, Cyber Range, Information Security Solutions and Data Systems product lines. The assets were sold
for $42.0 million in cash consideration, $1.5 million of which is to be held in escrow for up to 12 months in connection with certain customary
representations, warranties, covenants and indemnifications of the Company. Also on August 16,2016, approximately $15.5 million of the proceeds from
the CSS Sale were used to pay off the Term Loan and pay down the Revolving Credit Facility. In connection with the repayment of the Term Loan, the
$6.0 million balance of the Cash Collateral Account was released. See Note 17 “Subsequent Events” to the consolidated financial statements. The
retained portion of the Sypris Electronics segment will continue to provide electronic manufacturing and design support services to customers in the
aerospace, defense, medical and severe environment markets, among others.




Management’s Plan

Given the Company’s loss of market share in commercial vehicle manufacturing in early 2015 due to the nonrenewal of a supply agreement with
Dana Holding Corporation (“Dana”) and unfavorable growth trends and softness in commercial vehicle manufacturing and the oil and gas markets served
by Sypris Technologies, management has developed various profit recovery and protection plans and is evaluating strategic alternatives to optimize asset
values in each of the Company’s segments. Management engaged advisors during various periods to provide recommendations for cost reductions and
actions that can be taken to improve profitability. Management prepared a revised forecast during early 2016 with plans to further reduce costs, optimize
cash flow and remain in compliance with its debt covenant requirements throughout 2016. The Company completed a number of profit recovery and
protection actions in 2015 and the first half of 2016, including: (i) the Toluca Sale-Leaseback (defined below), (ii) the sale of certain assets used in the
Company’s manufacturing facility in Morganton, North Carolina within the Sypris Technologies segment, (iii) reduction in workforce at all locations,
and (iv) other reductions in employment costs through reduced work schedules, senior management pay reductions, deferral of merit increases and certain
benefit payments.

Additionally, in 2015, the Company’s debt was restructured, and the Company has received the benefit of cash infusions from Gill Family
Capital Management, Inc. (“GFCM?”), an entity controlled by the Company’s president and chief executive officer, Jeffrey T. Gill and one of our directors,
R. Scott Gill, in the form of subordinated promissory note obligations totaling $6.5 million in principal through the first half of2016.

During the first half of 2016, the Company generated additional liquidity through the sale and partial lease back of'its facility located in Toluca,
Mexico, which generated gross proceeds of approximately $12.2 million (the “Toluca Sale-Leaseback”). Of these proceeds, $6.0 million was deposited
into a cash collateral account to be held as additional collateral for the Term Loan (see Note 6 “Toluca Sale-Leaseback and Note 10 “Debt” to the
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q). Management will continue to operate in Toluca, but given the loss of Dana as a key customer in
2015 and the overall downturn in the commercial vehicle markets, management determined that the underutilized Toluca real estate value could be better
optimized with a sale and lease back arrangement where some but not all of the facility would continue to be occupied and managed by Sypris
Technologies. The Company’s base rent on the lease, which is denominated in U.S. currency, is $0.9 million annually, adjusted based on U.S. CPI with
certain cap conditions.

Demand in the commercial vehicle industry has softened beginning in the fourth quarter of 2015 along with other durable and non-durable
goods sectors in the North America economy. In response to the reduced demand, management implemented reductions in selling, general and
administrative expense and labor expense during the first half of 2016. Although the expected benefits of the cost reductions were partially offset by the
impact of minor investments and severance required to enable the cost reductions, the actions are expected to contribute to improved liquidity during
2016. Additional cost reductions may be implemented during the second half of 2016 if the market softens further.

Management has identified a number of new customer opportunities that are expected to provide higher gross margin opportunities, even at
lower volumes. Management is implementing operational efficiencies that are expected to enable reductions in the machinery set-up time for new
commercial vehicle orders which should enable the Company to quote on customer requirements that are higher margin but with somewhat shorter run
lengths. These new business activities are anticipated to enable the Company to diversify its revenue sources over a larger and more profitable customer
base.

The oil and gas industry has experienced significant price volatility, and as a result, the Company’s customers are delaying capital expenditures
that support their growth and maintenance projects. The Company has identified some capacity reallocation opportunities between plants in the United
States and Mexico. The Company has initiated the process of qualifying production for certain components in Mexico that are currently produced in the
United States and completed the qualification for the first group of these components. The Company expects the capacity reallocation may accelerate
during 2016 as the capital necessary to fund the reallocation becomes available and the qualification process for the production is complete.

Management has identified certain cost reductions at the corporate headquarters that are expected to improve profitability and cash flow
throughout 2016. Salary reductions and other selling, general and administrative cost reductions were implemented during the first half of 2016 that
management believes will continue to benefit the company throughout future periods. Additional cost reductions have been identified in the area of
professional services, administration and lease expense.




Subsequent to the end of the second quarter and in connection with the CSS Sale, management has initiated the process of preparing a long-term
business plan for the business units retained by Sypris Electronics after the divestiture. Management intends to include in its plan a continuing effort to
grow and diversify its electronic manufacturing service business and the identification of opportunities for cost reductions and cash flow enhancements
for the retained portion of the business.




Results of Operations

The tables below compare our segment and consolidated results for the three and six month periods of operations of 2016 to the three and six
month periods of operations of 2015. The tables present the results for each period, the change in those results from 2015 to 2016 in both dollars and

percentage change and the results for each period as a percentage of net revenue.

e The first two columns in each table show the absolute results for each period presented.

o The columns entitled “Year Over Year Change” and “Year Over Year Percentage Change” show the change in results, both in dollars and
percentages. These two columns show favorable changes as positive and unfavorable changes as negative. For example, when our net
revenue increases from one period to the next, that change is shown as a positive number in both columns. Conversely, when expenses
increase from one period to the next, that change is shown as a negative number in both columns.

o The last two columns in each table show the results for each period as a percentage of net revenue. In these two columns, the cost of sales
and gross profit for each are given as a percentage of that segment’s net revenue. These amounts are shown in italics.

In addition, as used in the table, “NM” means “not meaningful.”

Three Months Ended July 3,2016 Compared to Three Months Ended July 5,2015

Net revenue:
Sypris Technologies
Sypris Electronics
Total

Cost of sales:
Sypris Technologies
Sypris Electronics
Total

Gross profit (loss):
Sypris Technologies
Sypris Electronics

Total

Selling, general and administrative
Research and development
Severance

Operating loss

Interest expense, net
Other (income), net

Loss before taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense, net

Net loss

Year Over
Year Over Year Results as Percentage of
Year Percentage Net Revenue for the Three
Three Months Ended, Change Change Months Ended
July 3, July 5, Favorable Favorable July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 (Unfavorable)  (Unfavorable) 2016 2015
(in thousands, except percentage data)
$ 14,769 § 32,010 § (17,241) (53.9% 62.8% 78.5%
8,735 8,746 (11) 0.1) 37.2 21.5
23,504 40,756 (17,252) (42.3) 100.0 100.0
15,029 31,429 16,400 522 101.8 98.2
7,753 9,361 1,608 17.2 88.8 107.0
22,782 40,790 18,008 44.1 96.9 100.1
(260) 581 (841) (144.8) (1.8) 1.8
982 (615) 1,597 259.7 11.2 (7.0)
722 34) 756 M 3.1 0.1)
5,241 7,327 2,086 28.5 22.3 18.0
90 195 105 53.8 04 0.5
38 281 243 86.5 0.2 0.7
(4,647) (7,837) 3,190 40.7 (19.8) (19.2)
964 1,154 190 16.5 4.1 2.8
(409) (575) (166) (28.9) (1.7) (1.4)
(5,202) (8,416) 3,214 38.2 (22.1) (20.6)
1 — (1) NM = =
$ (5,203) $ (8,416) $ 3,213 382 22.1)% (20.6)%




Six Months Ended July 3,2016 Compared to Six Months Ended July 5,201S5.

Year Over
Year Over Year Results as Percentage of
Year Percentage Net Revenue for the Six
Six Months Ended, Change Change Months Ended
July 3, July 5, Favorable Favorable July 3, July 5,
2016 2015 (Unfavorable)  (Unfavorable) 2016 2015

(in thousands, except percentage data)
Net revenue:

Sypris Technologies $ 32,596 $ 60,080 $ (27,484) (45.71% 64.6% 77.3%
Sypris Electronics 17,846 17,685 161 0.9 354 22.7
Total 50,442 77,765 (27,323) (35.1) 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales:
Sypris Technologies 33,512 63,603 30,091 473 102.8 105.9
Sypris Electronics 15,481 17,353 1,872 10.8 86.7 98.1
Total 48,993 80,956 31,963 395 97.1 104.1
Gross profit (loss):
Sypris Technologies 916) (3,523) 2,607 74.0 2.8) (5.9)
Sypris Electronics 2,365 332 2,033 6123 13.3 1.9
Total 1,449 @3,191) 4,640 NM 29 “4.1)
Selling, general and administrative 11,744 16,445 4,701 28.6 233 21.1
Research and development 214 528 314 59.5 0.4 0.7
Severance 522 566 44 7.8 1.0 0.7
Operating (loss) income (11,031) (20,730) 9,699 46.8 (21.8) (26.7)
Interest expense, net 1,840 1,488 (352) 23.7) 3.7 1.9
Other (income), net (2,571) (754) 1,817 M (5.1) (1.0)
(Loss) income before taxes (10,300) (21,464) 11,164 M (20.4) (27.6)
Income tax (benefit) expense, net 2 (15) a7 NM = =
Net (loss) income $ (10,302) $ (21,449) § 11,147 NM (20.4)% (27.6)%
\

Net Revenue. Sypris Technologies derives its revenue from manufacturing services and product sales. Net revenue for Sypris Technologies for
the three and six month periods ended July 3,2016 decreased $17.2 million and $27.5 million from the prior year comparable periods, respectively. The
loss of the trailer axle revenue with the sale of assets in Morganton accounted for $7.5 million and $12.4 million of the decline, respectively.
Additionally, the Company experienced a decrease in revenue of $10.6 million and $16.4 million in the three and six months ended July 3, 2016
resulting primarily from lower demand from customers in the commercial vehicle and oil and gas industries. Partially offsetting this were increases of
$0.9 million and $1.3 million for the three and six months ended July 3, 2016, respectively, resulting from new business with existing customers.

Sypris Electronics derives its revenue from product sales and technical outsourced services. Net revenue for Sypris Electronics remained flat for
the three months ended and increased $0.2 million for the six months ended July 3, 2016 from the prior year comparable periods. The Company
experienced an increase in engineering services and cyber revenue during the periods which was offset by a decrease in engineering manufacturing
services due to the completion of a program in 2015.

Gross Profit. Sypris Technologies’ gross profit decreased to a loss of $0.3 million for the three months ended July 3, 2016, and increased
$2.6 million to a loss of $0.9 million for the six months ended July 3,2016. The Company experienced productivity challenges in the prior year period as
a result of the significant loss of business from Dana. Sypris Technologies has continued to adjust its fixed overhead structure in order to better align with
current volumes, resulting in improvements in gross profit. Additionally, depreciation expense decreased $0.4 million and $0.9 million for the three and
six months ended July 3,2016, respectively, primarily as a result of the sale of the Morganton assets in 2015. Offsetting this was a decrease in gross profit
of $2.1 million $3.1 million for the three and six months ended July 3, 2016, respectively, resulting from the decrease in volume attributable to lower
demand from customers in the commercial vehicle and oil and gas industries.
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Sypris Electronics’ gross profit increased $1.6 million and $2.0 million for in the three and six month periods ended July 3, 2016, respectively.
The improvement in gross profit for the three and six months ended July 3, 2016 was primarily as a result of a favorable mix in sales of higher margin
products and services in addition to a reduction in the overhead structure from the prior year comparable periods.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense decreased by $2.1 million and $4.7 million for the three and
six month periods ended July 3, 2016, respectively, as compared to the same periods in 2015 primarily as a result of a decrease in legal expenses
regarding contract negotiations and the related dispute with Dana, as the litigation is substantially complete. Additionally, the Company initiated various
cost reduction activities in 2015 in response to the loss of Dana including employee compensation and headcount reductions and the sale of the
Company’s Morganton facility (See Note 5, “Morganton Sale” to the consolidated financial statement in this Form 10-Q). Partially offsetting this was a
$0.5 million accrual for a contingent liability related to the exit of one of our leased facilities recorded during the first six months of 2016 (see Note 12
“Commitments and Contingencies” to the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q).

Research and Development. Research and development costs were $0.1 million and $0.2 million for the three and six months ended
July 3, 2016, respectively, as compared to $0.2 million and $0.5 million for three and six month comparable 2015 periods in support of Sypris
Electronics’ self-funded product and technology development activities.

Severance. Severance costs were negligible for three months ended and $0.5 million for the six months ended July 3, 2016 and were comprised
exclusively of headcount reductions within Sypris Technologies (See Note 4 “Management’s Plans” to the consolidated financial statements in this Form

10-Q).

Interest Expense. Interest expense for the three months ended July 3, 2016 decreased $0.2 million to $1.0 million as compared to $1.2 million for
the three months ended July 5, 2015. The prior year comparable period included the partial write-off of unamortized loan costs in conjunction with the
amendment to the prior credit facility.

Interest expense for the six months ended July 3, 2016 increased $0.4 million to $1.8 million primarily due to an increase in interest rates as a
result of the Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan entered into in the fourth quarter of 2015 and the note payable to GFCM, which increased the
Company’s interest rate structure (see Note 10 “Debt” to the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q).

Our weighted average debt outstanding was $22.1 million and $21.1 million for the three and six month periods of 2016, respectively, as
compared to $23.5 million and $20.6 million during the three and six month periods of 2015, respectively.

Other (Income) Expense, Net. The Company recognized other income of $0.4 million and $2.6 million for the three and six months ended
July 3,2016 compared to other income of $0.5 million and $0.8 million for the three and six months ended July 5, 2015, respectively. Other income, net
for the first six months of 2016 includes $2.4 million related to the gain recognized on the Toluca Sale-Leaseback completed during the first quarter of
2016 (See Note 6 “Toluca Sale-Leaseback” to the consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q). Additionally, other income net for the three and
six months ended July 3, 2016 includes foreign currency gains of $0.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively, related to the net U.S. dollar denominated
monetary asset position of our Mexican subsidiaries for which the Mexican peso is the functional currency.

Other income, net for the three and six months ended July 5, 2015 included gains of $0.5 million from an arbitration settlement and foreign
currency gains of $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
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Liquidity, Capital Resources

As described in more detail elsewhere in this report, as a result of the loss of Dana as a key customer, the Company experienced substantially
reduced levels of revenue and cash flows in 2015. Additionally, softness in the commercial vehicle market, which began in the fourth quarter of 2015, has
continued through the first half of 2016 and is expected to continue through the remainder of the year. These developments have required us to
reexamine our strategies, develop recovery plans and cut our costs significantly. Reductions in our available liquidity have also required closer
monitoring of the timing of our capital expenditures and cash flows in order to manage our business operations.

In response, we took significant actions during 2015 to pursue new business opportunities with existing and potential customers, identify
alternative uses for the related assets and other contingency plans, including the sale of certain assets used in the Company’s manufacturing facility in
Morganton, North Carolina within the Sypris Technologies segment. In 2015, we received approximately $15.7 million in total consideration for the
Morganton Sale and related transactions, all of which were applied to pay down our senior secured debt (See Note 5 “Morganton Sale” to the
consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Q). On October 30, 2015, the Company’s prior senior secured debt was replaced by the Loan
Agreements and paid in full. In addition, the Company has received three cash infusions from GFCM, in the form of subordinated promissory note
obligations totaling $6.5 million in principal through the first halfof2016.

Additionally, during the first half of 2016 and, in compliance with the Loan Agreements, the Company entered into the Toluca Sale-Leaseback
transaction whereby we sold the entire facility and leased back the portion of the facility currently occupied by the Company in Toluca, Mexico, for our
continued use as a manufacturing facility for ten years commencing upon the execution of the lease and terminating on March 9, 2026. The Company’s
base rent, which is denominated in U.S. currency, is $0.9 million annually, adjusted based on U.S. CPI with certain cap conditions. The transaction
generated gross proceeds of215.0 million Mexican Pesos, or approximately $12.2 million dollars in U.S. currency.

On August 16,2016, the Company completed the sale of certain assets, intellectual property, contracts and other assets of Sypris Electronics (the
“CSS Sale”) comprised principally of its SioMetrics, Cyber Range, Information Security Solutions and Data Systems product lines. See Note 17
“Subsequent Events” to the consolidated financial statements. The assets were sold for $42.0 million in cash consideration, $1.5 million of which is to be
held in escrow for up to 12 months in connection with certain customary representations, warranties, covenants and indemnifications of the Company.
The retained portion of the Sypris Electronics segment will continue to provide electronic manufacturing and design support services to customers in the
aerospace, defense, medical and severe environment markets, among others.

Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan. On October 30, 2015, the Company entered into Loan Agreements providing fora $12.0 million Term
Loan and a $15.0 million Revolving Credit Facility. Proceeds from the Loan Agreements were used to repay the prior senior secured debt and the Meritor
Note. Borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility is determined by a weekly borrowing base collateral calculation that is based on
specified percentages of the value of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, less certain reserves and subject to certain other adjustments.

On February 25, 2016, the Company entered into an amendment (the “Term Loan Amendment”) to the Term Loan and an amendment (the
“Revolving Credit Facility Amendment”) to the Revolving Credit Facility (together, the “Amendments”). The Amendments had the effect, among other
things, of increasing the Company’s borrowing capability under its Revolving Credit Agreement and providing for an agreement on the use of proceeds
from the Toluca Sale-Leaseback, as described below. As part of the Amendments, the Company also received an additional $1.0 million subordinated
loan from GFCM, as described below.

As a result of the Term Loan Amendment, the Company deposited $6.0 million of the proceeds of the Toluca Sale-Leaseback into a Cash
Collateral Account, to be held as additional collateral for the Term Loan. Amounts deposited in the Cash Collateral Account that are subsequently used
to pay down the principal of the Term Loan must be accompanied by an additional amount equal to the present value of the avoided interest associated
with the principal payment. The Term Loan Amendment further provides that the Company will be permitted to retain the remaining balance of the
proceeds from Toluca Sale-Leaseback, and increases the interest rate of the Term Loan by 1.0%.
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In addition, under the Term Loan Amendment and Revolving Credit Facility Amendment, the Company’s minimum excess availability
provisions were reduced from $4.0 million to $3.0 million. The lender further agreed to remove certain reserves which were counted against the
Company’s “borrowing base.”

The Company’s obligations under each of the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan, as amended, continue to be guaranteed by the
Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all assets of the Company and the guarantors. Each of the Revolving
Credit Facility Amendment and the Term Loan Amendment contains certain customary representations, warranties and covenants.

The Loan Agreements, as amended, contain a number of customary representations and warranties, affirmative, negative and financial
maintenance covenants, events of default and remedies upon default, including acceleration and rights to foreclose on the collateral securing each lender.
If the Company’s borrowing availability under the Revolving Credit Facility falls below $3.0 million, the Company must maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio of at least 1 to 1, as measured on a trailing twelve months’ basis.

On August 16, 2016, approximately $15.5 million of the proceeds from the CSS Sale were used to pay off the Term Loan and pay down the
Revolving Credit Facility. In connection with the repayment of the Term Loan, the $6.0 million balance of the Cash Collateral Account was released. See
Note 17 “Subsequent Events” to the consolidated financial statements.

Gill Family Capital Management Note. In connection with the amendments to the prior senior secured debt, the Company received the proceeds
of new subordinated indebtedness from GFCM in an amount of $5.5 million (“GFCM Note™). On February 26, 2016, the Company amended the GFCM
Note to increase the amount to $6.5 million in connection with the amendments to the Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan. GFCM is an entity
controlled by the Company’s president and chief executive officer, Jeffrey T. Gill and one of our directors, R. Scott Gill. GFCM, Jeffrey T. Gill and R.
Scott Gill are significant beneficial stockholders of the Company. The promissory note bears interest at a rate of 8.0% per year and all principal and
interest on the promissory note will be due and payable on the maturity date, January 30,2019.

Purchase Commitments. We also had purchase commitments totaling approximately $9.8 million at July 3, 2016, primarily for inventory.
Cash Flows

Operating Activities. Net cash used by operating activities was $7.0 million in the first six months of 2016 as compared to net cash used of
$11.0 million in the same period of 2015. Accrued and other liabilities increased resulting in an increase in cash of $2.2 million. The aggregate decrease
in accounts receivable in 2016 provided cash of $0.2 million. Similarly, decreases in accounts payable, resulted in a usage of cash of $0.4 million. Cash
of $0.5 million was used to finance an increase in inventory during the first six months of 2016, primarily due to the timing of shipments within Sypris
Electronics.

Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities was $5.0 million for the first six months of 2016 as compared to cash used of
$0.9 million for the first six months 0f 2015. As a result of the Toluca Sale-Leaseback transaction completed in the first quarter of 2016, the Company
received net cash proceeds of $11.1 million. As required under the Term Loan Amendment, the Company deposited $6.0 million of the proceeds of the
Toluca Sale-Leaseback into a Cash Collateral Account, to be held for one year as additional collateral for the Term Loan. Capital expenditures in both
periods represented maintenance levels of investment.

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.5 million for the first six months 0f 2016 as compared to $6.4 million for
the first six months of 2015. Net cash provided by financing activities in the first six months 0f 2016 included proceeds from the subordinated note from
Gill Family Capital Management of $1.0 million and an increase in debt under the Revolving Credit Facility of $2.7 million. Partially offsetting this were
principal payments on the Term Loan of $0.9 million and financing fees of $0.4 million in conjunction with the amendments of our Revolving Credit
Facility and Term Loan during the first six months 0f2016.

Net cash provided by financing activities in the first six months 0of 2015 included proceeds from the subordinated note from Gill Family Capital
Management of $5.5 million and proceeds from the subordinated note from Meritor of $3.0 million. Partially offsetting this was a senior secured debt
reduction of $0.3 million, dividend payments of $0.4 million and payments of $0.1 million for minimum statutory tax withholding on stock-based
compensation. Additionally, we paid $1.4 million in financing fees in conjunction with the amendments of our senior secured debt in the first six months
of2015.
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Critical Accounting Policies

See the information concerning our critical accounting policies included under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operation - Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2015. There have been no significant changes in our critical accounting policies during the six months ended July 3,2016.

Forward-looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and our other oral or written communications, contain “forward-looking” statements. These statements
include our expectations or projections about the future of our industries, business strategies, business and recovery plans, financing sources, liquidity,
potential investments, potential acquisitions and dispositions or our financial results or financial condition as well as our views about developments
beyond our control, including domestic or global economic conditions, credit markets, trends and market developments. These statements are based on
management’s views and assumptions at the time originally made, and, except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update these statements,
even if, for example, they remain available on our website after those views and assumptions have changed. There can be no assurance that our
expectations, projections or views will come to pass, and undue reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements.

A number of significant factors could materially affect our specific business operations and cause our performance to differ materially from any
future results projected or implied by our prior statements. Many of these factors are identified in connection with the more specific descriptions
contained throughout this report. Other factors which could also materially affect such future results currently include: our failure to develop and
implement plans to mitigate the impact of loss of revenues from Dana or to adequately diversify our revenue sources on a timely basis; orders received
may be cancelled or delayed by our customers, and even if we have a contractual right to manufacture and ship such orders, we must balance such rights
against our longer term customer relationships; reliance on major customers or suppliers, including the renewal of significant contracts or the continued
provision of trade credit terms despite concerns about our financial condition or liquidity; declining markets or market share in our commercial vehicle
and energy-related product lines, especially as we attempt to transition from legacy products and services into new market segments, customers and
technologies; the fees, costs and supply of, or access to, debt, equity capital, or other sources of liquidity, including the potentially material costs of our
compliance with covenants in, or the potential default under or acceleration of, our new credit facilities; volatility of our customers’ forecasts, scheduling
demands and production levels which negatively impact our operational capacity and our effectiveness to integrate new customers or suppliers;
dependence on, retention or recruitment of key employees especially in challenging markets; the cost, quality, timeliness, efficiency and yield of our
operations and capital investments, including working capital, production schedules, cycle times, scrap rates, injuries, wages, overtime costs, freight or
expediting costs; disputes or litigation involving lessor, supplier, customer, employee, landlord, creditor, stockholder, product liability or environmental
claims; our ability to successfully develop, launch or sustain new products and programs; inventory valuation risks including excessive or obsolescent
valuations; potential impairments, non-recoverability or write-offs of assets or deferred costs; our inability to successfully complete definitive agreements
for our targeted acquisitions or divestitures due to negative due diligence findings or other factors; the costs of compliance with our auditing, regulatory
or contractual obligations; our inability to patent or otherwise protect our inventions or other intellectual property from potential competitors; our
reliance on third party vendors and sub-suppliers; adverse impacts of new technologies or other competitive pressures which increase our costs or erode
our margins; cost and availability of raw materials such as steel, component parts, natural gas or utilities; regulatory actions or sanctions (including
FCPA, OSHA and Federal Acquisition Regulations, among others); potential weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting and enterprise risk
management; U.S. government spending on products and services that Sypris Electronics provides, including the timing of budgetary decisions; changes
in licenses, security clearances, or other legal rights to operate, manage our work force or import and export as needed; breakdowns, relocations or major
repairs of machinery and equipment; pension valuation, health care or other benefit costs; labor relations; strikes; union negotiations; cyber security
threats and disruptions; changes or delays in customer budgets, funding or programs; failure to adequately insure or to identify environmental or other
insurable risks; revised contract prices or estimates of major contract costs; risks of foreign operations; currency exchange rates; war, terrorism, or political
uncertainty; unanticipated or uninsured disasters, losses or business risks; inaccurate data about markets, customers or business conditions; or unknown
risks and uncertainties and the risk factors disclosed in Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2015.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are a smaller reporting company as defined in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K and thus are not required to provide the quantitative and
qualitative disclosures about market risk specified in Item 305 of Regulation S-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e)) required by Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b), our Chief Executive Officer and
our Chief Financial Officer have concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Changes in internal controls. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PartIl. Other Information
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are involved from time to time in litigation and other legal or environmental proceedings incidental to our business. On November 25,2013,
Sypris Technologies, Inc. initiated an arbitration proceeding against Dana Limited under the Non-Administered Arbitration Rules of the International
Institute for Conflict Prevention & Resolution alleging that Dana Limited had entered and then repudiated a five year extension of the parties’ long term
supply agreement, to run through 2019 or in the alternative had acted in bad faith by refusing to formalize that agreement. On December 30, 2013, Sypris
filed a Notice of Supplemental Claims in the same arbitration proceeding, seeking damages for Dana’s alleged breach of the parties’ original 2007 supply
agreement; and Dana filed a counterclaim for certain unpaid price rebates. The arbitrator awarded $0.5 million to Sypris Technologies and dismissed
Dana’s claims. On January 17,2014, Dana initiated a declaratory judgment action in the Court of Common Pleas for Lucas County, Ohio challenging the
arbitrability of the existence and enforceability of the extended supply agreement and seeking a ruling that the extended agreement was unenforceable.
On February 28, 2015, the Lucas County Court granted Dana’s motion, which was subsequently upheld by the Sixth District Court of Appeals for Ohio.
Our remaining claim of bad faith and Dana’s various potential claims for alleged nonperformance have been mutually released and dismissed effective as
of May 2,2016.

On January 15,2016, Sypris Electronics initiated a declaratory judgment action in the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Florida seeking to
resolve certain claims made by Sweetwell Industrial Associates, LLP (“Sweetwell”), in a notice of alleged default under our lease in Tampa, Florida. On
February 16, 2016, Sweetwell, the landlord under that lease, filed its answer and counterclaim and its third party complaint against the Company, as a
guarantor under the lease. The landlord claims that certain repairs must be made immediately and/or at the end of the current lease term. As such, it is
reasonably possible that the Company may be required to make certain repairs to the current facility upon exit. The current estimate of the Company’s
reasonably possible loss contingency is from no liability to $4.0 million. While the Company intends to vigorously dispute these claims, the Company
accrued $0.5 million during the six months ended July 3, 2016 related to its estimated potential obligation under the lease. This accrual is included in
accrued liabilities in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of July 3, 2016. There are currently no other material pending legal proceedings to
which we are a party.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Information regarding risk factors appears in Part I — Item 2, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Forward-Looking Statements,” in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and in Part I — Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,2015. There have been no material changes during the fiscal quarter from the risk factors disclosed in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

None
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
Item S. Other Information

None.
Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit Number Description

10.1 Lease between Sypris Electronics, LLC and University Business Center I, LLC dated May 3,2016 regarding 10421 University Center
Drive, Tampa, FL property.
31(31).1 CEO certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes - Oxley Act 0£2002.

31(31).2 Principal Financial Officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes - Oxley Act 0f2002.

32 CEO and Principal Financial Officer certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes - Oxley Act 0f2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE ~ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

SYPRIS SOLUTIONS, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: August 17,2016 By: /s/ Anthony C. Allen
(Anthony C. Allen)
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 17,2016 By: /s/ Rebecca R. Eckert
(Rebecca R. Eckert)
Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Lease Agreement

for

University Business Center IV
10421 University Center Drive
Tampa, FL

between
University Business Center I, LLC
Landlord

and

Sypris Electronics, LLC
Tenant

Dated:

April 20.2016

Exhibit 10.1
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LEASE

1. Fundamental Lease Provisions and Exhibits
1.1 Fundamental Lease Provisions.

(a) Date of Lease:
(b) Commencement Date:

(c) Term:
(d) Landlord:
(e) Landlord Address:

(f) Rental Payment Remittance:

As of April 20.2016
January 1,2017

Eleven (11) years through December 31, 2027
University Business Center I, LLC
610 N. Wymore Rd., Suite 200, Maitland, FL 32751

University Business Center I, LLC
610 N. Wymore Rd., Suite 200, Maitland, FL 32751

(g) Tenant: Sypris Electronics, LLC
(h) Tenant Address: 10901 N. McKinley Dr., Tampa, FL 33612
(i) Property Name: University Business Center IV
(j) Property Address: 10421 University Center Drive, Tampa, FL
City of Tampa, County of Hillsborough
(k) Property Description: See Exhibit "D" attached hereto and incorporated herein.
(1) Premises: Suite 100, consisting 0f 49,386 square feet of rentable area

(m) Leasehold Improvements: To be provided by Landlord: [X]Yes []No

(n) Tenant Improvement Allowance: $30.00 per rentable square foot ($1,481,580.00). Tenant shall have the option to trade free rent to include
Annual Base Rent and Additional Rent for additional Tenant Improvement dollars, not to exceed ten dollars

($10.00) per square foot.
(o) Base Rent: Subject to terms and provisions of Section 4.

Period Rate per SF* SF No. of Mos. Monthly Base Rent* Total Base Rent for Period*
1/1/17-12/31/17 $12.75 49,386 12 $52,472.63 $629,671.50
1/1/17-12/31/17 (812.75) 49,386 12 (852,472.63) (8629,671.50)
1/1/18-12/31/18 $13.04 49,386 12 $53,653.26 $643,839.11
1/1/19-12/31/19 $13.33 49,386 12 $54,860.46 $658,325.49
1/1/20-12/31/20 $13.63 49,386 12 $56,094.82 $673,137.81
1/1/21-12/31/21 $13.94 49,386 12 $57,356.95 $688,283.41
1/1/21-12/31/22 $14.25 49,386 12 $58,647.48 $703,769.79
1/1/23-12/31/23 $14.57 49,386 12 $59,967.05 $719,604.61
1/1/24-12/31/24 $14.90 49,386 12 $61,316.31 $735,795.71
1/1/25-12/31/25 $15.23 49,386 12 $62,695.93 $752,351.12
1/1/26-12/31/26 $15.58 49,386 12 $64,106.58 $769,279.02
1/1/27-12/31/27 $15.93 49,386 12 $65,548.98 $786,587.80

*plus Tenant’s pro rata share of operating expenses and Florida sales tax. (Subject to adjustment as set forth in this Lease.)

The Monthly Base Rent and Total Base Rent for Period set forth in the table above excludes the applicable “Operating Expenses” (defined below)
and shall hereinafter be known as “Base Rent”.




1.2

1.3

Abatement of Rent:

(p) Operating Expenses:

(q) Security Deposit:

So long as Tenant is not in default of this Lease beyond any applicable notice and cure period, Base Rent for
months 1-12 shall be abated 100% as detailed in the above rental schedule. Additionally, Operating
Expenses shall be abated 100% for months 1-16

In the event Tenant exchanges free rent dollars for Tenant Improvement dollars, the remaining free rent shall
be applied 100% first to Base Rent then Additional Rent on a monthly basis, beginning Month 1, until all
free rent is exhausted. See attached Exhibit J for an example of how the monthly free Base Rent and
Additional Rent would be applied.

Tenant’s Proportionate Share: 100% (based on 49,386 rsfdivided by 49,386 Total Building square feet)
Subject to the above Abatement of Rent provision, initial Monthly payments of $14,898.11 based on 2017
Estimated Operating Budget of $3.62 per rentable square foot described in Exhibit “G”, net of Tenant
electric, water/sewer, trash and janitorial service, subject to adjustment as set forth in this Lease. Tenant shall

contract directly with vendors for its own electric, janitorial services, water/sewer and trash removal.

$72,086.69, which is equal to one months’ full rent plus tax, payable upon execution of this Lease.

(r) Permitted Use: General Office, Administrative and Light Manufacturing

(s) Special Provisions Incorporated into Addendum as Exhibit “F” [X]Yes []No

(t) Guaranty:

Sypris Solutions, Inc.

Effect of Reference to a Fundamental Lease Provision. Each reference in this Lease to any of the Fundamental Lease Provisions contained in
Section 1.1 shall be construed to incorporate all of the terms provided under each such Fundamental Lease Provision.

Exhibits. The Exhibits listed in this Section and attached to this Lease are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Lease:

EXHIBIT "A" - Site Plan of the Property

EXHIBIT “A-1” Space Plan

EXHIBIT "B" — Tenant Improvements Addendum
EXHIBIT "C" - Rules and Regulations for Property
EXHIBIT "D" - Legal Description of Property
EXHIBIT "E" - Commencement Date Confirmation
— EXHIBIT "F" — Addendum
—  EXHIBIT “G” — Operating Expense Exclusions

EXHIBIT “H” — 2017 Operating Expense Break Down

EXHIBIT “I” - HVAC Unit Description

EXHIBIT “J” — Rent Abatement Example After Exchanged for TI Money




2. Premises and Term.

2.1. Premises. The Landlord hereby leases to the Tenant and the Tenant hires and takes from the Landlord the premises (hereinafter referred to as the
"Premises") shown on the Site Plan of the Property located in the improved building(s) on the Property (the "Building"), subject to and with the benefits of
the terms, covenants, conditions and provisions of this Lease, together with appurtenances specifically granted in this Lease, but reserving to the
Landlord (i) the use of (a) the exterior faces of all exterior walls and (b) the roof; and (ii) the right and the obligation in accordance with the terms of this
Lease (including, but not limited to, Section 5 of this Lease), to install, maintain, use, repair and replace pipes, ducts, conduits and wire which are serving
the Building. For the purposes of this Lease, the Premises shall be conclusively deemed to consist 0f 49,386 square feet.

2.2. Term. The Term shall commence on the Commencement Date and shall end at Noon on the last day of the Term, unless sooner terminated as
hereinafter provided. Landlord shall use all reasonable efforts to deliver possession of the Premises to the Tenant on or before the Commencement Date.
However, if Landlord cannot deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant on or before the Outside Commencement Date (defined below), subject to any
applicable extensions under this Lease and so long as such delay is not caused directly or indirectly by Tenant, this Lease shall be voidable by Tenant by
as set forth below.

3. Leasehold Improvements & Alterations.

3.1. Construction of Leasehold Improvements. Prior to the Commencement Date, Landlord shall improve the Premises by construction of Tenant
Improvements in accordance with the plans and specifications described in the Tenant Improvements Addendum attached hereto and made a part hereof
as Exhibit “B”. Landlord's costs in designing and constructing such Tenant Improvements shall not exceed the Tenant Improvements Allowance. Tenant
shall be responsible for any such expenses exceeding the Tenant Improvements Allowance and shall make payment to Landlord prior to occupancy of the
Premises. Any improvements to the Premises other than those set forth in Exhibit "B" and as approved in advance by Landlord, in writing, shall be
constructed by the Tenant at the sole cost and expense of the Tenant (“Tenant's Work™), subject to any remaining Tenant Improvements Allowance. The

Preliminary Space Plan for the Premises is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 and is approved by Landlord and Tenant.

Landlord acknowledges that Tenant shall incur substantial damages for holding over at its present premises at 10901 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa, FL
33612 (the “McKinley Property”) including, without limitation, holdover rent, potential moving expenses and other costs related to such holding over or
relocation to temporary space. Provided the Lease is executed by Tenant no later than April 20, 2016, if Landlord shall be unable to deliver possession of
the Premises to Tenant including a Certificate of Occupancy and any other necessary governmental approvals by December 31, 2016, and such failure to
make timely delivery is not caused by a Tenant Delay or an Excusable Delay (defined below), then in such event Landlord shall pay to Tenant as
liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, a sum or sums in an amount equal to the costs actually incurred by Tenant for holdover applicable to the
McKinley Property, for each month or any portion thereof that Landlord is unable to deliver possession of the Premises as set forth hereinabove ("Delay
Costs"). Such payments of Delay Costs by Landlord shall be due and payable to Tenant within thirty (30) days of Tenant’s written request, together with
invoices, for same. In the event Landlord fails to deliver the Premises to Tenant on or before March 31,2017 (the "Outside Commencement Date"), other
than as a result of Tenant Delays, Tenant shall have the option of terminating this Lease after March 31, 2017 by delivering written notice of such
intention to Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the failure to deliver the Premises on or before the outside Commencement Date is due to the
occurrence of an Excusable Delay and Landlord gives notice thereof to Tenant on or before February 1,2017, then the Outside Commencement Date shall
be extended for an additional thirty (30) days. If Landlord fails to deliver the Premises on or before such Outside Commencement Date as extended,
Tenant shall have the option of terminating this Lease by delivering written notice of such intention to Landlord on or before thirty (30) days after the
expiration of the Outside Commencement Date, as extended.




The term "Tenant Delays" shall mean any actual delay in the completion of Landlord's portion of the Improvements which delays substantial completion
and which is due to any act or omission of Tenant, its agents or contractors. Tenant Delays shall include, without being limited to: (i) delays due to
changes by Tenant in or additions to the Premises, (ii) delays in submission of Tenant's plans, or the giving of authorizations or approvals, (iii) delays
because of specifications for materials or equipment in Tenant's plans not permitting timely completion under normal circumstances or (iv) delays due to
Tenant’s low voltage and cable permitting and/or installation.

The term "Excusable Delays" as used in this Lease shall mean any delay due to strikes, lockouts or other labor or industrial disturbance (whether or not on
the part of employees of either party hereto), civil disturbance, future order of any government, court or regulatory body claiming jurisdiction, act of the
public enemy, war, riot, sabotage, blockade, embargo, failure or inability to secure materials, supplies or labor through ordinary sources by reason of
shortages or priority or similar regulation or order of any government or regulatory body, lightning, earthquake, fire, storm, hurricane, tornado, flood,
washout, explosion, or any cause whatsoever beyond the reasonable control of the party from whom performance is required, or any of its contractors or
other representatives, similar to any of the causes hereinabove, stated; provided, however, that for purposes of this definition, a party's lack of funds shall
not be deemed to be a cause beyond the control of such party, and an Excusable Delay shall be deemed to exist only so long as the party relying on
performance notifies the other party within five (5) Business Days, in writing, of such delay and exercises due diligence to remove or overcome it to the
extent reasonably possible (except that it is expressly agreed that nothing contained in this definition of Excusable Delay or elsewhere in this Lease shall
obligate either party to settle a strike or other labor dispute when it does not wish to do so).

3.2. Ownership of Improvements. All improvements to the Premises shall remain the property of the Landlord. In no event shall Tenant make any
improvements or alterations to the Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may install and remove
trade fixtures, without the prior written consent of Landlord. Any damage caused by such installation or removal shall be repaired by Tenant.

3.3. Alterations.

(a) Landlord’s Consent to Alterations. Tenant may not make any improvements, alterations, additions or changes to the Premises or any
mechanical, plumbing or HVAC facilities or systems pertaining to the Premises, including any cabling or fixtures, but excluding minor fixtures
incidental to installation of workstations (collectively, the “Alterations”), without first procuring the prior written consent of Landlord to such
Alterations, which consent shall be requested by Tenant not less than thirty (30) days prior to the commencement thereof, and which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by Landlord, provided it shall be deemed reasonable for Landlord to withhold its consent to any
Alterations which modify the structural portions or the systems or equipment of the Building, are visible from the exterior of the Building or
would reduce the marketability of the Premises or their fair market rental rate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall be permitted to make
Alterations following ten (10) business days’ notice to Landlord, but without Landlord's prior consent, to the extent that such Alterations are
decorative only (i.e., installation of carpeting or painting of the Premises using Building standard materials, finishes and colors and not visible
from the exterior of the Premises). The construction of the initial improvements to the Premises shall be governed by the terms of Section 3.1 and
Exhibit B, and not the terms of this Section 3.3.




(b) Manner of Construction. Landlord may impose, as a condition of its consent to any and all Alterations or repairs of the Premises or about
the Premises, such requirements as Landlord in its reasonable discretion may deem desirable, including the requirement that Tenant utilize for
such purposes only contractors, subcontractors, materials, mechanics and materialmen selected by Tenant from a list provided and approved by
Landlord and the requirement that, upon Landlord's request, Tenant shall, at Tenant's expense, remove such Alterations upon the expiration or
any early termination of the Lease Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may also propose a contractor for Landlord’s consideration,
subject to Landlord’s approval in its sole and absolute discretion. Tenant shall construct such Alterations and perform such repairs in a good and
workmanlike manner, diligently and without material cessation, delay or interruption, in conformance with any and all applicable federal, state,
county or municipal laws, rules and regulations and pursuant to a valid building permit issued by the municipality in which the Building is
located all in conformance with Landlord's construction rules and regulations and reasonable additional directives; provided, however, that prior
to commencing any Alteration, Tenant shall meet with Landlord to discuss Landlord's design parameters and code compliance issues. In the
event Tenant performs any Alterations in the Premises which require or give rise to governmentally required changes to the “Base Building,” as
that term is defined below, then Landlord shall, at Tenant's expense, make such changes to the Base Building. The “Base Building” shall include
the structural portions of the Building, and the public restrooms, elevators, exit stairwells, paths of travel and the systems and equipment located
in the internal core of the Building on the floor or floors on which the Premises are located. In performing the work of any such Alterations,
Tenant shall have the work performed in such manner so as not to obstruct access to the Property or any portion thereof, by any other tenant of
the Property, and so as not to obstruct the business of Landlord or other tenants in the Building or on the Property. Tenant shall not use (and
upon notice from Landlord shall cease using) contractors, services, workmen, labor, materials or equipment that, in Landlord's reasonable
judgment, would disturb labor harmony with the workforce or trades engaged in performing other work, labor or services in or about the
Building or the Common Areas. In addition to Tenant's obligations under Section 8 of this Lease, upon completion of any Alterations, Tenant
shall deliver to the Project construction manager a reproducible copy of the “as built” drawings of the Alterations as well as all permits,
approvals and other documents issued by any governmental agency in connection with the Alterations.

(c) Payment for Improvements. If payment is made by Tenant directly to contractors, Tenant shall (i) comply with Landlord's requirements for
final lien releases and waivers in connection with Tenant's payment for work to contractors, and (ii) sign Landlord’s standard contractor's rules
and regulations. The costs for any work performed by Landlord on Tenant’s behalf shall be agreed to prior to commencing the work.

(d) Construction Insurance. In addition to the requirements of Section 6 of this Lease, in the event that Tenant makes any Alterations, prior to
the commencement of such Alterations, Tenant shall provide Landlord with evidence that Tenant carries “Builder's All Risk” insurance in an
amount approved by Landlord covering the construction of such Alterations, and such other insurance as Landlord may reasonably require, it
being understood and agreed that all of such Alterations shall be insured by Tenant pursuant to Section 6 of this Lease immediately upon
completion thereof. In addition, Landlord may, in its discretion, require Tenant to obtain a lien and completion bond or some alternate form of
security reasonably satisfactory to Landlord in an amount sufficient to ensure the lien-free completion of such Alterations and naming Landlord
as a co-obligee.




(e) Landlord's Property. All Alterations, improvements, fixtures, equipment and/or appurtenances which may be installed or placed in or about
the Premises, from time to time, shall be at the sole cost of Tenant and shall be and become the property of Landlord, except that Tenant may
remove any fixtures and/or equipment (e.g., additional HVAC or chillers), which Tenant can substantiate to Landlord have not been paid for with
any Tenant improvement allowance funds provided to Tenant by Landlord, provided Tenant repairs any damage to the Premises and Building
caused by such removal and returns the affected portion of the Premises to a building standard tenant improved condition as determined by
Landlord reasonable wear and tear excepted. Furthermore, Landlord may, by written notice to Tenant prior to the end of the Term, or given
following any earlier termination of this Lease, require Tenant, at Tenant's expense, to remove any Alterations and/or improvements and/or
systems and equipment within the Premises and to repair any damage to the Premises and Building caused by such removal and return the
affected portion of the Premises to a building standard tenant improved condition as determined by Landlord reasonable wear and tear excepted.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant’s obligation to remove Alterations shall only be applicable to (i) additional work done by Tenant after
the Commencement Date, (ii) those items that are specific to Tenant’s business and not customarily found within a typical office tenant’s
premises and (iii) all other Alterations for which Landlord gives written notice to Tenant, prior to installation thereof, that Landlord will require
the removal of any such Alteration. If Tenant fails to complete such removal and/or to repair any damage caused by the removal of any
Alterations and/or improvements and/or systems and equipment in the Premises and return the affected portion of the Premises to a building
standard tenant improved condition as reasonably determined by Landlord and within a commercially reasonable time period, Landlord may do
so and may charge the cost thereof to Tenant. Tenant hereby protects, defends, indemnifies and holds the Landlord Parties harmless from any
liability, cost, obligation, expense or claim of lien in any manner relating to the installation, placement, removal or financing of any such
Alterations, improvements, fixtures and/or equipment in, on or about the Premises, which obligations of Tenant shall survive the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease. Landlord shall not under any circumstances be liable to any equipment lessor or construction lender for loss or
other impairment of their collateral.

4. Rent, Additional Rent, Other Payments & Security Deposit.

4.1. Payment. All Annual Minimum Rent and other charges payable to the Landlord under any provision of this Lease shall be paid to the Landlord,
or as the Landlord may otherwise designate, in lawful money of the United States at the address of the Landlord or at such other place as the Landlord in
writing may designate, without any set-off or deduction whatsoever, and without any prior demand therefor. In addition to the payment of the Annual
Minimum Rent and other charges, the Tenant shall also pay to the Landlord, at the time of payment of such Annual Minimum Rent and other charges, all
sales, use and/or occupancy taxes payable by virtue of any such payments. Annual Minimum Rent for any period beginning during the Term which is for
less than one (1) month shall be a prorated portion of the monthly installment.

42. Annual Minimum Rent. Annual Minimum Rent is defined as Base Rent plus Operating Expenses. The Tenant shall pay, without prior notice or
demand, the Annual Minimum Rent specified in Section 1.1 hereof, in equal monthly installments in advance on the first day of each calendar month
included in the Term. Annual Minimum Rent for the first full month of the Lease Term shall be paid on or before January 1,2017. Annual Minimum Rent
for any initial partial calendar month shall be payable on delivery of the Premises. Tenant acknowledges that late payment by Tenant to Landlord of
Annual Minimum Rent or other sums due hereunder will cause Landlord to incur costs not contemplated by this Lease, the exact amount of which would
be extremely difficult and impractical to ascertain. Such costs include, but are not limited to, processing and account charges, and late charges, which
may be imposed on Landlord by the terms of any mortgage encumbering the Premises. Therefore, in the event any installment of Annual Minimum Rent
or any sum due hereunder is not paid within five (5) days after such amount is due, Tenant shall pay to Landlord as Additional Rent, a late charge equal to
five percent (5%) of each such installment or other sum or Twenty Five ($25.00) Dollars per month, whichever is greater. A sum of Fifteen ($15.00)
Dollars shall also be due from and paid by Tenant to Landlord for each returned check, and Tenant shall pay a charge of One Hundred Fifty Dollars
(8150.00) for preparation of a demand for delinquent rent in addition to all other sums due by Tenant under this Lease.




43. Adjustment of Annual Minimum Rent. Increases in the Annual Minimum Rent specified in Section 1.1 hereof (and the monthly installment
thereof) shall become effective on each anniversary of the Commencement Date or, if the Commencement Date falls on a day other than the first day of a
month, on each anniversary of the first complete month following the Commencement Date (“Adjustment Date”) and continuing until the day before the
following Adjustment Date (each such one year period being referred to herein as a “Lease Year.”)

4.4. Additional Rent. Landlord shall fumish to Tenant, prior to January 31st of each year, Landlord's estimate of Operating Expenses for the coming

year. The estimate shall be determined as though the Building were occupied at the actual occupancy rate or at an occupancy rate of ninety five (95%)
percent, whichever is higher. Tenant shall pay to Landlord, on the first day of each month as Additional Rent, an amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of
Tenant's Proportionate Share of Landlord's estimate of Operating Expenses. Until Landlord shall furnish such estimate to Tenant, Tenant shall pay to

Landlord, on the first day of each month, an amount equal to the Additional Rent payable during the preceding month. If there shall be any increase or
decrease in Operating Expenses for any year, whether during or after such year, Landlord shall furnish to Tenant a revised estimate and the Additional

Rent shall be adjusted and paid or refunded, as the case may be. If the calendar year for which such estimate is furnished ends after the termination of this
Lease, or begins before the commencement of this Lease, the Additional Rent payable hereunder shall be prorated to correspond to that portion of the
calendar year occurring within the Term of this Lease. Within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each calendar year, Landlord shall furnish to

Tenant an Operating Statement showing actual Operating Expenses incurred for the preceding year, adjusted where appropriate to a projected cost as
though the Building were 95% occupied for any periods where actual occupancy was less than 95%. If the Operating Statement shows that the sums paid
by Tenant exceed Tenant's Proportionate Share of Operating Expenses, Landlord shall promptly either refund to Tenant the amount of such excess or
credit the amount thereof against subsequent payments of Additional Rent; and if the Operating Statement shows that the sums paid by Tenant were less
than Tenant's Proportionate Share of the same, Tenant shall pay the amount of such deficiency within ten (10) business days after demand therefor. Failure
or delay of Landlord to submit the written statement referred to herein shall not waive any rights of Landlord. For purposes of this Lease, "Operating
Expenses" shall mean and include costs and disbursements (other than income taxes) of every kind and nature which Landlord shall pay or become
obligated to pay because of or in connection with the management, maintenance, repair or operation of the Building or the Property, including, without
limitation, real property taxes, personal property taxes, electricity, steam, water, gas, fuel, heating, lighting, air conditioning, window cleaning, janitorial,
insurance (including, without limitation, fire, extended coverage, liability, workmen's compensation, elevator or any other insurance carried by Landlord
and applicable to the Building or the Property), parking lot maintenance (including re-striping), landscaping, painting, uniforms, management fees,
supplies, sundries, sales or use taxes on supplies and services, costs of wages and salaries of all persons engaged in the operation, administration,
maintenance and repair of the Building or the Property, and fringe benefits (including, without limitation, social security taxes, pension, hospitalization,
welfare or retirement plans, or any other similar or like expenses incurred under the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, or any other cost
or expenses which Landlord pays or incurs to provide benefits for employees so engaged in the operation, administration, maintenance and repair of the
Building or the Property so long as such fringe benefits are reasonable and customary under the circumstances), the charge of any independent contractor
who, under contract with Landlord or its representative, does any of the work of operating, maintaining or repairing of the Building, legal and accounting
expenses (including, without limitation, such expenses as relate to the seeking or obtaining of reductions in and refunds of real estate taxes), and any
other expenses or charges not hereinabove mentioned which in accordance with generally accepted accounting and management principles for properties
in Florida similar to the Property would be considered an expense of managing, operating, maintaining or repairing the Building or the Property. Tenant
shall also pay to Landlord, as Additional Rent, when and as billed by Landlord, Tenant's Proportionate Share of the cost of capital improvements made to
the Building by Landlord after the Commencement Date which are intended to result in a reduction of Operating Expenses or to comply with any law or
regulation that was not applicable to the Building on the Commencement Date, amortized over such reasonable period as consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles, together with interest on the unamortized balance at the rate of interest reasonably available to Landlord for the
borrowing of funds for construction of such capital improvements; provided that Tenant shall only be responsible for such amortized amounts applicable
to the Term. In the case of any capital improvement which is intended to result in a reduction in Operating Expenses, the total cost of such capital
improvement included in Operating Expenses shall not exceed the reduction in Operating Expenses resulting from such capital improvement as
reasonably estimated, in accordance with accepted engineering practices, by Landlord's engineer at the time of installation. Operating expenses, to the
extent of any applicable Tenant HVAC “caps”, shall also include the costs of routine maintenance (which is not included in any Tenant HVAC “cap”),

repair but not the replacement of the HVAC system in the Premises, provided that if there are any charges for the maintenance, repair or replacement of the
HVAC system in the Premises which are attributable to the abuse of the system by the Tenant, or adjustments to the system caused by the movement or
particular preferences of Tenant’s employees in the Premises, Tenant shall be separately charged, and shall pay as Additional Rent hereunder such excess

charges caused by the abuse of the system, or movement or particular preferences of employees of Tenant. Specific Operating Expense Exclusions are
detailed in “Exhibit G”.




Audit. Tenant shall have the right to have Landlord’s books and records pertaining to Operating Expenses for any year during the Term of this
Lease audited on a confidential basis (“Tenant’s Audit”) provided that (i) such right shall not be exercised more than once during any calendar year; (ii) if
Tenant elects to conduct Tenant’s audit, Tenant shall provide Landlord with written notice thereof no later than sixty (60) days following Tenant’s
receipt of Landlord’s statement of Operating Expenses for the year to which Tenant’s Audit will apply; (iii) Tenant shall have no right to conduct
Tenant’s Audit if Tenant is, either at the time Tenant forwards Landlord written notice that Tenant’s Audit will be conducted or at any time during
Tenant’s Audit, then in default under this Lease beyond any applicable notice and cure period; (iv) conducting Tenant’s Audit shall not relieve Tenant
from the obligation to pay Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Operating Expenses, as billed by Landlord, pending the outcome of such audit; (v) Tenant’s
right to conduct such audit for any calendar year shall expire sixty (60) days following Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s statement of Operating Expenses
for such year, and if Landlord has not received written notice of such audit within such sixty (60) day period, Tenant shall have waived its right to
conduct Tenant’s Audit for such calendar year and shall be deemed to have accepted such statement as true and accurate; (vi) Tenant’s Audit shall be
conducted by a Certified Public Accountant on an hourly (i.e., not contingency) basis; (vii) Tenant’s Audit shall be conducted at Landlord’s office in
Orange County, Florida where the records of the year in question are maintained by Landlord, during Landlord’s normal business hours; and (vii)
Tenant’s Audit shall be conducted at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, provided that if Tenant’s Audit determines that Landlord has overcharged Tenant
by more than five percent (5%), Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the reasonable costs of such Audit. In any event, any overcharges shall be refunded
to Tenant within ten (10) business days after final determination of the overcharges.

4.5 Security Deposit. Upon full execution of this Lease by Landlord and Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord a Security Deposit in the amount set
forth in Section 1.1. hereinabove, to be held by Landlord for the faithful performance by Tenant of Tenant's covenants and obligations hereunder, it being
expressly understood that the Security Deposit shall not be considered as an advance payment of Rent or as a measure of Landlord's damages in the event
of a default by Tenant. If at any time during the Term hereof, or the Term as it may be extended, the Tenant shall be in default in payment of Annual

Minimum Rent or any other sum due the Landlord as Additional Rent, the Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, apply all or a part of the Security
Deposit for such payment. The Landlord may also apply all or part of the Deposit to repair damages to the Premises during or upon the termination of the
tenancy created by this Lease. In such event, the Tenant shall, on demand, pay to the Landlord a like sum to replenish the Security Deposit. If Tenant is
not in default at the termination of this Lease, Landlord shall return the Security Deposit to the Tenant. Landlord shall not be required to keep the
Security Deposit separate from its general funds, and Tenant shall not be entitled to interest on the Security Deposit. Landlord and Tenant agree that
Landlord shall be entitled to immediately endorse and cash Tenant's Rent and Security Deposit check(s) accompanying this Lease. It is further agreed and
understood that such action shall not guarantee acceptance of this Lease by Landlord, but in the event Landlord does not accept this Lease, the Tenant's
Rent and Security Deposit checks so delivered shall be refunded in full to Tenant.




5. Services, Utilities, Maintenance and Repairs.

5.1 Services & Utilities. The Landlord shall cause the necessary mains, conduits and other facilities to be provided to supply water, sanitary sewer
facilities and electricity into the Premises. The Tenant shall pay directly all charges for electric, water, sewer, trash, telephone and any other utilities used
or consumed in the Premises which are separately metered to the Premises. In the event that Tenant shall fail or refuse to pay any utility charges
individually metered to Tenant, the Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, pay such charges, and Tenant shall reimburse the Landlord on demand.

Tenant shall timely and directly pay the cost of all utilities, repair services, maintenance services and replacement expenses relating to or serving the
Premises which are not included within the definition of Operating Expenses. The costs and expenses which Tenant shall be responsible to timely and
directly pay shall include, without limitation, utilities separately metered for the Premises (including, but not limited to electricity, water/sewer/trash),
and janitorial services for the interior of the Premises.

5.2. Maintenance by Landlord. Landlord shall keep in good repair and order, the foundations and exterior walls (excluding, but not limited to, the
interior surface of exterior walls and all windows, doors and thresholds), canopies, downspouts, gutters, roof and roof deck, and the parking area, exterior
lighting, common areas, structural components, landscaping, fire alarm & sprinkler systems and other items of repair and replacement covered by
Operating Expenses. For clarification purposes, Landlord is responsible for all capital expenditures (which shall not be included in Operating Expenses)
determined in accordance with GAAP including but not limited to roof replacement together with the floor slab, excepting any improper use by Tenant
or Tenant exceeding floor capacity loads, and below grade plumbing. The portion of the Building intended to be designated as the exterior shall
exclude those portions herein covenanted and agreed by Tenant to be kept in repair. If any plate glass window in the Premises is damaged or broken by
Tenant or Tenant Parties, Tenant shall be liable for its prompt repair and replacement.

Landlord shall be responsible for maintaining a system maintenance contract, repairs and replacement of heating, ventilating and air conditioning
(HVAC) units, the costs of which shall be included in Operating Expenses (subject to Exhibit “F” paragraph 2). If there are any charges for the
maintenance of the HVAC system in the Premises which are attributable to the abuse of the system by the Tenant, or adjustments to the system caused by
the movement or particular preferences of Tenant’s employees in the Premises, Tenant shall be separately charged, and shall pay as Additional Rent
hereunder such excess charges caused by the abuse of the system, or movement or particular preferences of employees of Tenant. If Tenant uses heat
generating machines or equipment in the Premises that affects the temperature otherwise maintained by the HVAC system that is being provided by
Landlord, Landlord shall not be required to install supplementary air conditioning units in the Premises. If Tenant elects to install supplementary air
conditioning units, then the cost of installation, operation and maintenance thereof, shall be paid by Tenant.




5.3. Maintenance by Tenant. Tenant shall keep clean, neat and in good order, repair and condition the interior of the Premises, including, but not limited
to, all electrical equipment, lighting fixtures and bulbs, above grade plumbing (including fixtures, lines and facilities), fire safety appliances & equipment
(including extinguishers, smoke detectors, specialty equipment), doors (interior & exterior), floors, walls and windows, and Tenant will not suffer or
permit any waste of the Premises. Tenant shall be solely responsible for the maintenance and repair and/or replacement of any upgraded electrical service,
upgraded HVAC equipment, clean rooms and any and all other equipment that is exclusive to Tenant’s operation of its business within the Premises.
Tenant expressly agrees that the use of roof areas shall be limited to ingress for maintenance purposes by Landlord only, and that said roof areas shall not
be used for antennae, storage, inventory or other similar uses

Tenant shall make all other repairs, whether of a like or different nature, except those which Landlord is specifically obligated to make under the
provisions of Section 5.2 above. Tenant shall pay the cost of installation, service, repairs, maintenance and replacement of all supplemental heating,
ventilating and air conditioning equipment or specialty equipment as necessitated or required by Tenant’s use.

Tenant shall keep the Premises equipped with all safety appliances required in order to comply with any law, ordinance, order or regulation of any
governmental authority or board of fire underwriters having jurisdiction.

6. Insurance.

6.1. Insurance to be Maintained by Tenant. Tenant shall maintain, at Tenant's expense, with companies reasonably acceptable to Landlord during
the Term the following insurance for the Premises:

1) all-risk (special form) property insurance insuring the Tenant improvements, including without limitation all Tenant property located in
the Premises, including furniture, equipment, fittings, installations, fixtures, supplies and any other personal property, leasehold
improvements and alterations (“Tenant’s Property”) in an amount equal to the full replacement cost value, it being understood that no
lack or inadequacy of insurance by Tenant shall in any event make Landlord subject to any claim by virtue of any theft of or loss or
damage to any uninsured or inadequately insured property;

(i)  Business Interruption insurance in an amount at least equal to the rental value of the Premises for at least 12 months (that is, the aggregate
amount of all rent and other consideration payable under the lease by Tenant),

(ili) Commercial general liability insurance written on an occurrence basis including personal injury, bodily injury, broad form property
damage, operations hazard, contractual liability, with a cross liability clause and a severability of interests clause to cover Tenant’s
indemnities set forth herein, and products and completed operations liability, in limits not less than $1,000,000 inclusive per occurrence
and $2,000,000 per location annual aggregate, or such higher limits and additional coverages as Landlord may require from time to time
during the Term and such insurance policies will be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to the
coverage that Landlord may carry and will not be subject to a deductible;

(iv) automobile liability insurance covering owned, non-owned and hired vehicles in an amount not less than a combined single limit of
$1,000,000.00 per accident;

(v)  workers’ compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of the State in which the Property is located and employer’s liability

insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000.00 each accident, $1,000,000.00 disease-each employee and $1,000,000.00 policy limit,
with the insurance policies endorsed to waive the insurance carriers’ right of subrogation against Landlord, subject to applicable law;

10




(vi) umbrella liability insurance with limits of not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence/$5,000,000 aggregate sitting excess of employer’s
liability, auto liability and general liability, and not more restrictive than all underlying liability;

(vii) in the event Tenant performs any repairs or alterations in the Premises, Builder’s Risk insurance on an “All Risk” basis (including
collapse) on a completed value (non-reporting) form for full replacement value covering all work incorporated in the Building and all
materials and equipment in or about the Premises should such exposure not be covered by the all-risk policy in Section 6.1(i) herein; and

(viii) such other reasonable insurance, in such reasonable amounts, as Landlord, or any Lender or Lessor of Landlord, may from time to time
reasonably request against such other insurable hazards, which at the time are commonly insured against for property similar to the
Property located in or around the region in which the Property is located.

Tenant shall maintain the foregoing insurance coverage in effect commencing on the earlier to occur of the Commencement Date and the date Tenant
takes possession of the Premises, and continuing to the end of the Term. All liability policies, including without limitation the General Liability,
Automobile Liability, Employer’s Liability and Umbrella liability, shall name Landlord, Landlord’s manager, and all lender’s and lessors of Landlord, of
which Tenant has been notified, as additional insureds, as their respective interest may appear. Tenant shall have the right to include the insurance
required by this Section 6.1 herein under Tenant’s policies of “blanket insurance,” provided that no other loss which may also be insured by such blanket
insurance shall affect the insurance coverages required hereby.

6.2. The insurance requirements set forth in this Section 6 are independent of the waiver, indemnification, and other obligations under this Lease and
will not be construed or interpreted in any way to restrict, limit or modify the waiver, indemnification and other obligations or to in any way limit any
party’s liability under this Lease. In addition to the requirements set forth in this Section 6, the insurance policies required of Tenant under this Lease
must: be issued by an insurance company with a rating of no less than A- or better by Standard & Poors or Moody’s or A-VIII in the current Best’s
Insurance Guide or that is otherwise acceptable to Landlord, and admitted to engage in the business of insurance in the state in which the Building is
located; be primary insurance and noncontributing to any insurance carried by Landlord, Landlord’s Building manager, and Landlord’s lenders; and be
endorsed to provide that in the event of cancellation, non-renewal or material modification, Landlord and any lender of Landlord shall receive thirty (30)
days written notice thereof. In addition, Tenant shall provide Landlord with thirty (30) days prior written notice of the termination of any policy of
insurance required hereunder. Tenant will deliver to Landlord a legally enforceable certificate of insurance on all policies procured by Tenant in
compliance with Tenant’s obligations under this Lease on or before the date Tenant first occupies any portion of the Premises, at least ten (10) days before
the expiration date of any policy and upon the renewal of any policy. Landlord shall have the right to approve all deductibles and self-insured retentions
under Tenant’s policies, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

6.3. Neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be liable (by way of subrogation or otherwise) to the other party (or to any insurance company insuring the
other party) for any loss or damage to any of the property of Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be, with respect to their respective property, the
Building, the Property or the Premises or any addition or improvements thereto, or any contents therein, to the extent covered by insurance carried or
required to be carried by a party hereto. Landlord and Tenant shall give each insurance company which issues policies of insurance, with respect to the
items covered by this waiver, and shall have such insurance policies properly endorsed, if necessary, to prevent the invalidation of any of the coverage
provided by such insurance policies by reason of such mutual waiver. For the purpose of the foregoing waiver, the amount of any deductible applicable
to any loss or damage shall be deemed covered by, and recoverable by the insured under the insurance policy to which such deductible relates.




6.4. If Tenant shall hire or bring a contractor onto the Premises to perform any alterations, work or improvements, Tenant agrees to have a written
agreement with contractor whereby they will be required to carry the same insurance coverages for Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability,
Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability insurance. Tenant shall also require that such contractor’s insurance will meet same additional terms

as required of Tenant herein with regards to adding Landlord and Landlord’s lender as additional insureds, maintaining primary and non-contributory
coverage carried by Tenant, Landlord, Landlord’s Manager, Landlord’s Lender and Landlord’s lessor, waiving all rights of recovery and subrogation,

and making certificates of insurance available as evidence of all policies during the term of their work and in advance of all applicable renewals in lieu
ofrequirements outlined herein.

6.5. Tenant shall not knowingly conduct or permit to be conducted in the Premises any activity, or place any equipment in or about the Premises or
the Building, which will invalidate the insurance coverage in effect or increase the rate of casualty insurance or other insurance on the Premises or the
Building, and Tenant shall comply with all requirements and regulations of Landlord’s casualty and liability insurer. If any invalidation of coverage or
increase in the rate of any Tenant required insurance occurs or is threatened by any insurance company due to any act or omission by Tenant, or its
agents, employees, representatives, or contractors, such statement or threat shall be conclusive evidence that the increase in such rate is due to such act
of Tenant or the contents or equipment in or about the Premises, and, as a result thereof, Tenant shall be liable for such increase and such amount shall be
considered Additional Rent payable with the next monthly installment of monthly Annual Minimum Rent due under this Lease. In no event shall
Tenant introduce or permit to be kept on the Premises or brought into the Building any dangerous, noxious, radioactive or explosive substance.

6.6. Landlord shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from unknown fire, explosion, falling plaster, steam, gas,
electricity, electrical or electronic emanations or disturbance, water, rain or snow or leaks from any part of the Building or from the pipes, or caused by
dampness, vandalism, malicious mischief or by any other cause of whatever nature, unless caused by or due to the gross negligence of Landlord, its
agents, servants or employees. Tenant shall take all reasonably prudent temporary measures and safeguards to prevent any injury, loss or damage to
persons or property in the event of an incident in leased space.

6.7. Any insurance limits required by this Lease are minimum limits only and not intended to restrict the liability imposed on Tenant or any
contractor for work performed under the contract.

6.8. During the Term, the proceeds from any such policy or policies of insurance shall be used for the repair or replacement of the property and
equipment so insured. Landlord will not carry insurance on Tenant's Property. Tenant shall furnish Landlord with a certificate of all insurance policies
required by this Lease evidencing the existence and amounts of such insurance with loss payable clauses satisfactory to Landlord no later than ten (10)
days before the earlier of (i) the Commencement Date or (ii) Tenant’s possession of the Premises. Renewals of such policies shall be deposited with the
Landlord no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration of the terms of such coverage. If the Tenant fails to comply with such requirement, the
Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, obtain such insurance and keep the same in effect, and Tenant shall pay Landlord the premium costs thereof
upon demand.

6.9. Insurance to be Maintained by Landlord. Landlord shall obtain and keep in force, during the Term, the following policies of insurance with loss
payable to Landlord: (i) a policy of Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance, insuring Landlord against any liability arising
out of ownership, use, occupancy or maintenance of the Building and Property; (ii) a policy or policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the
Building and Property, but not Tenant's inventory, fixtures, furniture and equipment, in an amount not to exceed the full replacement value thereof, as the
same exists from time to time, providing all risk protection against all perils included within the classifications of fire, extended coverage, vandalism,
malicious mischief, special extended perils ("all risk", as such term in the insurance industry) and plate glass insurance; (iii) a policy of rental value
insurance in an amount not less than one (1) year's gross rentals for all tenants occupying any portion of the Building; (iv) worker’s compensation
insurance as required by state law; and (v) any other insurance the Landlord deems necessary or appropriate. The cost of the insurance procured by
Landlord shall be considered Additional Rent of which the Tenant shall pay its Proportionate Share pursuant to Section 4.4 hereof. If Landlord's
insurance premiums exceed the standard premium rates because the nature of Tenant's operation and use of the Premises results in extra hazardous
exposure, then Tenant shall, upon receipt of appropriate invoices from Landlord, reimburse Landlord for such increase in premiums. It is understood and
agreed between the parties hereto that any such increase in premiums shall be considered as Annual Minimum Rent due and shall be included in any lien
for rent. The insurance required to be obtained by Landlord may be obtained by Landlord through blanket or master policies insuring other entities or
properties owned or controlled by Landlord. Landlord shall furnish Tenant with a certificate of all insurance policies required by this Lease evidencing
the existence and amounts of such insurance no later than ten (10) days before the earlier of (i) the Commencement Date or (ii) Tenant’s possession of the
Premises. Renewals of such policies shall be deposited with the Tenant no later than ten (10) days after to the expiration of the terms of such coverage.




7. Additional Covenants of Tenant.
7.1. Affirmative Covenants. The Tenant covenants, at its expense, at all times during the Term:

7.1.1.  To perform promptly all of the obligations of the Tenant set forth in this Lease and in the Exhibits and Addenda attached hereto, and to pay
when due the Annual Minimum Rent and all other charges and sums which are to be paid by Tenant pursuant to this Lease.

7.1.2.  To use the Premises only for the Permitted Use and to abide by and conform to all use restrictions set forth in the certificate of occupancy issued
for the Premises, and in the Rules and Regulations (as the same may be reasonably amended from time to time in Landlord's discretion), the mortgage(s), if
any, filed of record encumbering the Premises, and all other laws, orders, permits, rules and regulations of any governmental authority claiming
jurisdiction over the Premises.

7.1.3.  To defend and hold the Landlord harmless and indemnified from all injury, loss, claims and damage (including attorneys' fees, paralegals' fees
and disbursements) to any person or property arising from or related to, or connected with the use or occupancy of the Premises, the conduct or operation
of'the Tenant's business, or the Tenant Improvements at the Premises unless caused by or resulting from the negligence of Landlord, its agents, servants or
employees in the operation or maintenance of the Premises or the Building. Should Landlord be named as a defendant in any suit brought against Tenant
in connection with or arising out of Tenant's occupancy of the Premises, Tenant shall indemnify Landlord in accordance with Section 10 of this Lease.

7.1.4. Subject to applicable law, to permit Landlord or the Landlord's agents to enter upon the Premises at all reasonable times, upon not less than
twenty-four (24) hours prior notice (except in the event of an emergency) to the President and/or Vice President of Operations of Tenant, to examine and
to make repairs, alterations, improvements or additions to the Premises or the Building without the same constituting an eviction of the Tenant, in whole
or in part, and all rents shall in no way abate while such repairs, alterations, improvements or additions are being made by reason of loss or interruption of
business of the Tenant because of the prosecution of any such work. The Landlord or the Landlord's agents shall also have the right to enter upon the
Premises at reasonable times, upon not less than twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to the President and/or Vice President of Operations of Tenant, to

show them to prospective mortgagees or purchasers of the Building. During the ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the term of this Lease, the
Landlord may show the Premises to prospective tenants, and the Landlord may also place upon the Premises the usual notices "For Rent", which notices
the Tenant shall permit to remain thereon without molestation. If, during the last month of the Term, the Tenant shall have removed all of the Tenant's

property from the Premises, the Landlord may immediately enter and alter, renovate and redecorate the Premises without elimination or abatement of
Annual Minimum Rent or other compensation, and such action shall have no effect upon this Lease. Notwithstanding, Landlord recognizes that Tenant
fulfills sensitive contracts for the Department of Defense that include provisions that entry must be limited to U.S. Citizens and certain security clearance
and pre-screening measures followed. Furthermore, reasonable notice to Tenant must be provided at all times except in the event of an emergency.
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7.1.5.  Reserved.

7.1.6 To forthwith cause to be discharged of record (by payment, bond, order of a court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise) any mechanic's lien at
any time filed against the Premises, the Building or the Property for any work, labor, services or materials claimed to have been performed at or furnished
to the Premises for or on behalf of the Tenant or anyone holding the Premises through or under the Tenant. If the Tenant shall fail to cause such lien to be

discharged upon demand, then, in addition to any other right or remedy of the Landlord, the Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge the
same by paying the amount claimed to be due, by bonding or by any other proceeding deemed appropriate by the Landlord, and the amount paid by the
Landlord, and all costs and all expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and paralegals' fees, incurred by the Landlord in procuring the discharge of
such lien shall be deemed to be an additional assessment. The Landlord's estate in the Premises shall not be subject to any lien or liability under the Lien
Laws of the State of Florida.

7.1.7.  To quit and surrender to the Landlord the Premises upon the expiration of the Term or other termination of the Lease, broom clean, in good order
and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and at Tenant's expense, to remove all property of the Tenant, to repair all damages to the Premises
caused by such removal, and to restore the Premises to the condition in which they were prior to the installation of the articles so removed. All property
not so removed shall be deemed to have been abandoned by the Tenant and may be retained or disposed of by the Landlord, as the Landlord shall desire.

7.1.8.  To remain fully obligated under this Lease, notwithstanding any assignment or sublease or any indulgence by the Landlord to the Tenant or to
any assignee or sublessee.

7.1.9.  Subject to Landlord’s maintenance, repair and replacement obligations in accordance with the provisions of this Lease, Landlord shall have no
liability for any loss or damage to Tenant's business or personal property arising out of, but not limited to, any of the following causes: hurricanes,
excessive rain, roofing defects, bursting of pipes, fire, windstorm, malfunction of sewer or water system, interruption of utility services or any act or
omission of Landlord or any of Landlord's agents on or about the Premises.

7.1.10. To keep the Premises free from all rubbish, dirt, and debris and to deposit all trash in trash receptacles to be furnished by Landlord at designated
locations within the common areas of the Property. The Tenant understands that boxes and trash shall not be stacked outside of the Premises and/or on
any abutting roadway, driveway or parking area. Landlord, at its option, may provide containers for recyclable items. Should recycling containers be
provided by Landlord, Tenant agrees to use its best efforts to sort its trash.

7.1.11.  To provide Landlord with a financial statement of Tenant in form reasonably satisfactory to Landlord upon execution of this Lease by Tenant,
and to provide additional financial statements of Tenant, if so requested by Landlord, provided that under no circumstances shall Tenant be obligated to
provide financial statements to Landlord that are not otherwise prepared by Tenant in the ordinary course of its business. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
so long as Tenant remains a wholly owned subsidiary of a publicly traded company and has not entered into an assignment or sublease of this Lease,
Tenant shall not be required to provide the financial statements required by this Section 7.1.11.
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7.1.12.  To furnish to the Landlord any documentation reasonably requested by Landlord to show the status of this Lease or other financial condition of
Tenant. Any reasonable changes to this Lease required by any Mortgagee of the Landlord to satisfy the requirements for the financing or refinancing of
the Property unless they materially alter the terms and conditions of this Lease, shall be agreed to and complied with by the Tenant.

7.2. Negative Covenants. Tenant covenants at all times during the Term and such further time as the Tenant occupies the Premises, or any part
thereof:

7.2.1.  Not to injure, overload, deface or otherwise harm the Premises or any part thereof or any equipment or installation therein; nor commit any waste
or nuisance; nor permit the emission of any objectionable noise, vibration or odor; nor burn any trash or refuse in or about the Premises; nor make any use
of the Premises, or any part thereof or equipment therein, which is improper, offensive to adjacent tenants or contrary to any law or ordinance or to
reasonable rules or regulations of the Landlord as such may be promulgated from time to time; nor park any vehicles so as to interfere with the use of
driveways, walks, roadways, highways, streets or parking areas.

8. Prohibition Against Mechanic's Liens.

Any liability of the Landlord or of the Property for any work or improvements made upon the Premises by the Tenant is hereby expressly prohibited. The
interest of the Landlord in and to the Premises, the Building and the Property shall not be subject to liens for improvements made in or to the Premises by
Tenant or by Tenant's employees, contractors, subcontractors or agents. Tenant represents and warrants unto Landlord that any construction contract
which Tenant enters into for construction of improvements in the Premises (which shall occur only following Landlord's express written consent) shall
expressly prohibit the filing of liens against the Landlord's interest in the Premises, Building and Property.

9. Assignment, Subletting and Encumbrances.

9.1. Landlord's Consent Required. Tenant shall not assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or encumber this Lease or any interest therein, nor
sublet the Premises or any part thereof without the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed by
Landlord, and any attempt to do so without such consent being first obtained shall be voidable and, at Landlord's election, shall constitute a default of
Tenant under this Lease. Notwithstanding any statement herein to the contrary, Tenant shall have the right without Landlord’s consent to assign this

Lease to a parent or affiliate of Tenant so long as Tenant shall remain liable hereunder and has provided Landlord with no less than thirty (30) days prior
written notice of such assignment.

9.2. Tenant's Application for Consent. In the event that Tenant desires at any time to assign this Lease or to sublet the Premises or any portion thereof,
Tenant shall submit to Landlord, in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of the assignment or sublease: (i) a Notice of
Intention to Assign or Sublease, setting forth the proposed effective date, which shall be no less than thirty (30) nor more than ninety (90) days after the
sending of such notice; (ii) the name of the proposed subtenant or assignee; (iii) the nature of the proposed subtenant's or assignee's business to be carried
on in the Premises; (iv) the terms and provisions of the proposed sublease or assignment; (v) a current certified financial statement of the proposed
subtenant or assignee; and (vi) such additional information concerning the proposed assignment or sublease and proposed assignee or sublessee as the
Landlord may reasonably request.




9.3. Reserved.

94. Assignment or Sublease Profit. In the event of any sublease of all or any portion of the Premises, having first been approved by Landlord, where
the rental reserved in the sublease exceeds the rental or prorata portion of the rental, as the case may be, for such space reserved in the Lease, Tenant shall
pay Landlord monthly, as Additional Rent, at the same time as the monthly installments of Rent required hereunder, one half of the excess of the rental
reserved in the sublease over the rental reserved in this Lease applicable to the subleased space less Tenant’s reasonable transaction costs including but
not limited to tenant improvements and brokerage fees.

95. Permission for Tenant to Assign or Sublease. The granting of permission for Tenant to assign or sublease the Premises on any one or more
occasions shall not constitute ipso facto waiver of the requirement imposed hereby that the written consent of the Landlord be obtained for any
subsequent or other assignment or subletting, and the acceptance of rent checks and the negotiation of same, or the acceptance of rent payments in any
other fashion, from any assignee or sublessee, whether or not Landlord had knowledge of the assignment or sublease under which such assignee or
sublessee claims, shall not constitute ipso facto consent by Landlord to such assignment or sublease or constitute a waiver of the restrictions upon
assignment and subletting imposed in this section.

10. Assumption of Risk, Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

Tenant shall indemnify and hold harmless Landlord, its agents, servants and employees against and from any and all claims arising from Tenant's use of or
the condition of the Premises or the conduct of its business or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted or suffered by the Tenant in or about the
Premises, and shall further indemnify and hold harmless Landlord against and from any and all claims arising from any breach or default in the
performance of any obligations on Tenant's part to be performed under the terms of this Lease, or arising from any act, neglect, fault or omission of the
Tenant, or of its agents or employees, and from and against all reasonable costs, attorneys' fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in or about such claim or
any action or proceeding brought thereon, and about such claim. Tenant upon notice from Landlord shall defend the same at Tenant's expense by counsel
reasonably satisfactory to Landlord. Provided that Tenant has assumed the defense and indemnity obligations hereunder and has engaged counsel
reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, Tenant shall not be obligated to reimburse Landlord for any attorneys' fees, paralegals' fees, disbursements,
consultants' fees, or other costs incurred for services that are duplicative to or not reasonably related to Tenant’s obligations. Tenant hereby assumes all
risk of damage to property or injury to persons in, upon or about the Premises from any cause whatsoever, except that which is caused by the failure of
Landlord to observe any of the terms and conditions of this Lease and such failure has persisted for an unreasonable period of time after written notice
from Tenant to Landlord of such failure.

11. Landlord's Liabilities.

Landlord shall be under no personal liability with respect to any of the provisions of this Lease and if Landlord is in default with respect to its obligations
hereunder Tenant shall look solely to the leasehold interest and equity of the Landlord in the Premises and the Property for the satisfaction of the Tenant's
remedies. It is expressly understood and agreed that the Landlord's liability under this Lease shall in no event exceed the loss of its leasehold and equity
interest in the Property.




12. Environmental Provisions.
12.1 Hazardous Materials Provisions.

12.1.1  Hazardous Materials Covenants. Tenant shall at all times during the Term comply with the following requirements: (a) Tenant shall not cause,

permit or suffer any Hazardous Material (as hereafter defined) to be brought upon, treated, kept, stored, disposed of, discharged, released, produced,
manufactured, generated, refined or used upon, about or beneath the Premises or the Property by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, invitees or
licensees (collectively, "Tenant Parties"), except to the extent commonly used in the day to day operation of the Premises by Tenant in compliance with

all Environmental Requirements (as hereafter defined), which shall include up to two (2) self-contained Hazmat storage buildings in the rear of the
property (The Hazmat storage buildings and their placement and location on the Property, all associated structures, access and entranceways, and all
materials stored within such Hazmat storage buildings, shall at all times meet and comply with all Environmental Requirements, other applicable
governmental rules, regulations and requirements, and any reasonable Landlord rules and regulations, and shall be completely enclosed and explosion-
proof. Moreover, the design, exterior appearance and placement on the Property of the Hazmat storage building shall be subject to Landlord’s prior
written approval.). (b) Tenant agrees that all operations or activities upon, or any use or occupancy of the Premises, or any portion thereof, by Tenant or
any Tenant Parties shall be in all respects in compliance with all Environmental Requirements then governing or in any way relating to the generation,
handling, manufacturing, treatment, storage, use, transportation, release, spillage, leakage, dumping, discharge or disposal of any Hazardous Materials. (c)
Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, promptly take all actions required by any federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision to
mitigate Environmental Damages (as hereafter defined) which arise directly or indirectly from or in connection with the presence, suspected presence,
release or suspected release of any Hazardous Material in or into the air, soil, surface water or groundwater at, on, about, under or within the Premises or
Property, or any portion thereof, by Tenant or Tenant Parties. Such actions shall include, if required by any such governmental agency or political

subdivision, but not be limited to, the investigation of the environmental condition of the Premises, the Building or any portion of the Property adversely
affected by Tenant's breach of any of the provisions of this paragraph (the "Affected Property"), and the preparation of and performance of any cleanup,
remediation, containment, operation, maintenance, monitoring or restoration work, whether on or off of the Affected Property. Tenant shall take all

actions required by any federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision to restore the Affected Property to the condition existing prior
to the introduction of Hazardous Material upon, about or beneath the Affected Property in accordance with the standard of remediation imposed by
applicable law. Tenant shall proceed continuously and diligently with such investigatory and remedial actions, provided that in all cases such actions
shall be in accordance with all applicable requirements of governmental entities. Any such actions shall be performed in a good, safe and workmanlike
manner by one or more contractors selected by Tenant, and approved in advance in writing by Landlord, and under the supervision of a consulting
engineer, selected by Tenant and approved in advance in writing by Landlord, and shall minimize any impact on the business conducted at the Property.

Tenant shall pay all costs in connection with such investigatory and remedial activities, including but not limited to the charges of such contractor(s) and
consulting engineer, all power and utility costs, any and all taxes or fees that may be applicable to such activities, and Landlord's reasonable attorneys'
fees, paralegals' fees and costs incurred in connection with monitoring or review of such investigatory and remedial activities. Tenant shall promptly
provide to Landlord copies of testing results and reports that are generated in connection with the above-mentioned activities. Promptly upon completion
of'such investigation and remediation, Tenant shall permanently seal or cap all monitoring wells and test holes to industrial standards in compliance with
applicable laws, remove all associated equipment, and restore the Affected Property to the maximum extent possible, which shall include, without
limitation, the repair of any surface damage, including paving, caused by such investigation or remediation hereunder. (d) If Tenant shall become aware
of or receive notice or other communication concerning any actual, alleged, suspected or threatened violation of Environmental Requirements, or
liability of Tenant for Environmental Damages in connection with the Premises or activities of any person thereon, then Tenant shall deliver to Landlord,
within ten (10) days of the receipt of such notice or communication by Tenant, a written description of said violation, liability, correcting information or
actual or threatened event or condition, together with copies of any documents evidencing same. Receipt of such notice shall not be deemed to create any
obligation on the part of Landlord to defend or otherwise respond to any such notification. (¢) Tenant shall promptly provide to Landlord the results of
any tests and copies of all registration permits regarding any underground storage tanks located on the Premises and Tenant shall comply with same. (f) In
the event of any default under this Lease, Landlord shall have the right in its sole and absolute discretion, but not the duty, to enter upon the Premises at
any reasonable time, at the expense of Tenant, to conduct an inspection thereof, including invasive tests, and the activities conducted thereon to
determine compliance with all Environmental Requirements and the existence of any Environmental Damages as a result of the condition of the Premises
or any surrounding properties and activities thereon. Tenant hereby grants to Landlord, and the agents, employees, consultants and contractors of
Landlord, the right to enter upon the Premises and to perform such tests thereon or therein as are necessary to conduct such reviews and investigations in
accordance with the preceding sentence. Landlord shall use its best efforts to minimize interference with the business of Tenant and to restore the
Premises to its previous condition, but Landlord shall not be liable for any interference caused thereby or any failure to restore if Landlord reasonably
determines that it is not economically practicable. Notwithstanding any statement herein to the contrary, Tenant shall only be liable for Environmental
Damages to the extent that such Damages occur during the Term and are not caused by Landlord’s actions or by the actions of any party related to
Landlord. Further, Tenant shall have the right to choose, and the obligation to diligently and timely pursue, any remedial measures that comply with
applicable laws, and to the extent that Landlord requires any additional actions be taken, such actions shall be taken by Landlord at Landlord’s sole cost
and expense (except in the event of Tenant’s failure to diligently and timely pursue remedial measures, in which case Tenant shall be responsible for the

cost and expense of Landlord’s remediation actions).




12.1.2 Hazardous Materials Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them: (a) "Environmental Damages" means all claims,
judgments, damages (including, without limitation, punitive damages), losses, penalties, fines, liabilities (including strict liability), encumbrances, liens,
costs, and expenses of investigation and defense of any claim, whether or not such is ultimately defeated, and of any settlement or judgment, of whatever
kind or nature, contingent or otherwise, matured or unmatured, foreseeable or unforeseeable, including without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and
paralegals' fees and disbursements and consultants' fees, any of which are incurred at any time during or after the Term directly or indirectly from or in

connection with the presence, suspected presence, release or suspected release of any Hazardous Material in or into the air, soil, surface water or
groundwater at, on, about, under or within the Premises, Building or Property, or any portion thereof, or any surrounding properties, by Tenant or Tenant

Parties and including, without limitation: (i) Damages for personal injury, or injury to the Premises, Building or Property or natural resources occurring
upon or off of the Property, but excluding lost profits, exemplary damages, consequential damages, interest and penalties, and including but not limited
to claims brought by or on behalf of employees of Tenant, with respect to which Tenant waives, for the benefit of Landlord only, any immunity to which

Tenant may be entitled under any industrial or worker's compensation laws, (ii) fees incurred for the services of attorneys, consultants, contractors,
experts, laboratories and all other costs incurred in connection with the investigation, cleanup or remediation of such Hazardous materials or violation of
Environmental Requirements including, but not limited to, the performance of any cleanup, remedial, removal, abatement, containment, closure,
restoration or monitoring work required by any federal, state or local governmental agency or political subdivision, or reasonably necessary to restore the
Affected Property in accordance with the standard of remediation imposed by applicable law or otherwise expended in connection with such conditions,
and including, without limitation, any attorneys' fees, paralegals' fees and costs incurred in enforcing this Lease or collecting any sums due hereunder;
and (iii) liability to any person or entity to indemnify such person or entity for costs expended in connection with items described in subpart (ii) next
above. Provided that Tenant has assumed the defense and indemnity obligations hereunder and has engaged counsel reasonably satisfactory to Landlord
as required in Section 10 of this Lease, Environmental Damages shall not include any attorneys' fees, paralegals' fees, disbursements, consultants' fees, or
other costs incurred for services that are duplicative to or not reasonably related to Tenant’s obligations. (b) "Environmental Requirements" means all

applicable present and future statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, licenses, permits, orders, approvals, plans, authorizations, concessions,
franchises and similar items, of all governmental agencies, departments, commissions, boards, bureaus or instrumentalities of the United States, states and
political subdivisions thereof and all applicable judicial and administrative and regulatory decrees, judgments and orders relating to the protection of
human health or the environment including, without limitation: (i) all requirements, including but not limited to, those pertaining to reporting, licensing,
permitting, investigation and remediation of emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of Hazardous Materials, or relating to the manufacture,
processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials; and (ii) all requirements pertaining to the
protection of the health and safety of employees or the public. (c) "Hazardous Materials" means any substance: (i) the presence of which requires
investigation or remediation under any federal, state or local statute, regulation, rule, ordinance, order, action or policy; or (ii) which is or becomes
defined as a "hazardous waste" or "hazardous substance" or "pollutant" or "contaminant" under any federal, state or local statute, regulation, rule, or
ordinance or amendments thereto including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C.
Section 9601 et seq.) or the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq.); or (iii) which is toxic, explosive, corrosive,
flammable, infectious, radioactive, carcinogenic, mutagenic, or otherwise hazardous and is or becomes regulated by any governmental authority, agency,
department, commission, board, agency or instrumentality of the United States, any State of the United States, or any political subdivision thereof; or (iv)
the presence of which on the Property causes or threatens to cause a nuisance upon the Property or to adjacent properties or poses or threatens to pose a
hazard to the Property or the health or safety of persons on or about the Property; or (v) which contains, without limitation, gasoline, diesel fuel or other
petroleum hydrocarbons or volatile organic compounds; or (vi) which contains, without limitation, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB's) or asbestos or
asbestos-containing materials or urea formaldehyde foam insulation; or (vii) which contains or consists of, without limitation, radon gas.
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12.1.3  Tenant's Representations and Warranties in Regard to Hazardous Materials. Tenant represents and warrants as follows: (a) Tenant shall obtain

any and all permits, licenses and other authorizations which may be required under all Environmental Requirements, including laws relating to emissions,
discharges, release or threatened releases of Hazardous Materials into the environment (including ambient air, surface water, ground water or land) or
otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of Hazardous Materials; (b) Tenant
shall not construct, place, deposit, store, dispose of nor locate on the Premises or the Property, any PCB's, transformers, capacitors, ballasts, or other
equipment which contains dielectric fluid containing PCB's, or any asbestos or asbestos-containing materials or any insulation material containing urea
formaldehyde or any radon gas.

12.14  Indemnification. Tenant agrees to indemnify, reimburse, defend, exonerate, pay and hold harmless: (a) Landlord, its affiliates and any other
person or entity which holds or which may hereafter have an interest in this Lease; and (b) the directors, officers, shareholders, partners, employees and
agents of Landlord and any other person or entity which has or which may hereafter hold an interest in this Lease, from and against any and all
Environmental Damages arising in any manner whatsoever out of the violation of or non-compliance with any Environmental Requirements, or the
breach of any warranty or covenant or the inaccuracy of any representation of Tenant contained in this Lease.

12.1.5 Survival. Each of the covenants, representations and warranties of Tenant contained in this Section 12 of this Lease shall survive the termination
or earlier expiration of this Lease for the applicable statute of limitations.




12.2 Radon Disclosure. RADON GAS: Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in a building in sufficient
quantities, may present health risks to persons who are exposed to it over time. Levels of radon that exceed federal and state guidelines have been found
in buildings in Florida. Additional information regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained from the Tenant's County Public Health Unit.

13. Americans with Disabilities Act.

Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq.) and regulations and guidelines

promulgated thereunder, as all of the same may be amended from time to time (collectively referred to herein as the "ADA") establish requirements under
Title Il of the ADA ("Title III") pertaining to business operations, accessibility and barrier removal, and that such requirements may be unclear and may or
may not apply to the Premises, Building or the Property depending upon, among other things: (i) whether Tenant's business operations are deemed a
"place of public accommodation" or a "commercial facility", (ii) whether compliance with such requirements is "readily achievable" or "technically
infeasible", and (iii) whether a given alternative affects a "primary function area" or triggers so-called "path of travel" requirements. Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge and agree that Tenant has been provided an opportunity to inspect the Premises, the Building and Property sufficient to determine whether
or not the Premises, Building and Property in their condition current as of the Lease Date deviate in any manner from the ADA Accessibility Guidelines

("ADAAG") or any other requirements under the ADA pertaining to the accessibility of the Premises, Building or Property. Tenant further acknowledges

and agrees that except as may otherwise be specifically provided herein, Tenant accepts the Premises, Building and Property in "as is" condition and
agrees that Landlord makes no representation or warranty as to whether the Premises, Building or Property conform to the requirements of the ADAAG or
any other requirements under the ADA pertaining to the accessibility of the Premises, Building or Property. If Landlord is to perform Tenant

Improvements pursuant to this Lease, Tenant has reviewed the plans and specifications for the work and has independently determined that such plans
and specifications are in conformance with ADAAG and any other requirements of the ADA and all other laws, rules and regulations applicable to the

Tenant Improvements. Tenant further acknowledges and agrees that to the extent that Landlord prepared, reviewed or approved any of those plans and
specifications, such action shall in no event be deemed any representation or warranty that the same comply with any requirements of the ADA.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, Landlord and Tenant agree to allocate responsibility for Title III compliance as follows: (a)
Tenant shall be responsible for all Title IIl compliance (other than "path of travel" requirements which shall be addressed as provided in (b) next below)
and costs in connection with the Premises, excluding structural work, if any, which shall be the responsibility of the Landlord, and including any
leasehold improvements or other work to be performed in the Premises under or in connection with this Lease, and (b) Landlord shall perform, and Tenant
shall be responsible for the cost of, any so-called Title III "path-of-travel" requirements triggered by any construction activities or alterations in the
Premises, after the initial improvements. Except as set forth above with respect to Landlord's Title IIl obligations, Tenant shall be solely responsible for all
other requirements under the ADA relating to the Tenant or any affiliates or persons or entities related to the Tenant or the Premises, including, without

limitation, requirements under Title I of the ADA pertaining to Tenant's employees.

14. Destruction and Condemnation.

14.1.  Fire or Other Casualty. In the event of (i) a partial destruction of the Premises or the Building during the Term which requires repairs to either the
Premises or the Building, or (ii) the Premises or the Building being declared unsafe or unfit for occupancy by any authorized public authority for any
reason other than Tenant's act, use or occupation, which declaration requires repairs to either the Premises or Building, Landlord may elect to commence
repairs within sixty (60) days thereof, but such partial destruction shall in no way serve to annul or void this Lease, except that Tenant shall be entitled to
a proportionate reduction of Annual Minimum Rent and other charges while such repairs are being made if the Premises are rendered untenantable
thereby. The proportionate reduction is to be based upon the extent to which the making of repairs shall interfere with the business carried on by Tenant
in the Premises. In the event that Landlord does not elect to commence repairs within sixty (60) days, or repairs cannot be made under current laws and
regulations, either party may terminate this Lease upon ten (10) days' written notice. A total destruction, including any destruction required by any
authorized governmental authority, of either the Premises or the Building shall terminate this Lease. Landlord shall not be required to repair any property
installed in the Premises by Tenant nor to repair any portion of the Premises for which insurance proceeds are not paid to Landlord. Nothing herein shall
authorize abatement or reduction of rent because of total or partial destruction arising out of the negligent or willful acts of omission or commission by
Tenant.
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14.2.  Condemnation. If any part of the Premises shall be taken or condemned for a public or quasi-public use, and a part thereof remains which is
suitable for occupation hereunder, this Lease shall, as to the part so taken, terminate as of the date title shall vest in a condemnor, and the Annual

Minimum Rent payable hereunder shall be adjusted so that the Tenant shall be required to pay for the remainder of the Term only such portion of such

Rent as the number of square feet in the part remaining after the condemnation bears to the number of square feet in the entire Premises at the date of
condemnation; but, in such event, Landlord or Tenant shall have the option to terminate this Lease as of the date when title to the part so condemned
vests in a condemnor. If all or any part of the Premises shall be taken or condemned so that there does not remain a portion suitable for occupation, this
Lease shall thereupon terminate. If all or a part of the Premises be taken or condemned, all compensation awarded upon such condemnation or taking
shall go to the Landlord and the Tenant shall have no claim thereto, and the Tenant hereby irrevocably assigns and transfers to the Landlord any right to

compensation or damages to which the Tenant may be entitled during the Term hereof by reason of the condemnation of all, or a part, of the Premises.

Tenant shall retain the right to pursue reimbursement related to the condemnation of its leasehold interests, however, that Tenant shall make no claim
which shall diminish or adversely affect any award claimed or received by Landlord. Further, upon any condemnation of the Property that renders the
Premises commercially impractical for Tenant to use for the intended use, Tenant shall be entitled to terminate this Lease by thirty (30) days’ advance

written notice to Landlord.

15. Defaults and Remedies.

15.1.  Events of Default. The following events shall be deemed to be events of default by Tenant under this Lease: (i) Tenant shall fail to pay any rent
or any other sums of money due hereunder and such failure shall continue for a period of seven (7) days after the date such sum is due; (ii) Tenant shall
fail to comply with any provisions of this Lease or any other written agreement between Landlord and Tenant, all of which terms, provisions and
covenants shall be deemed material; (iii) the leasehold hereunder demised shall be taken on execution or other process of law in any action against
Tenant; (iv) Tenant shall fail to promptly move into, take possession of, and operate its business on the Premises when the Premises are ready for
occupancy or shall cease to do business in or abandon any substantial portion of the Premises unless Landlord preapproves such delayed possession or
operation, in writing, and Tenant continues to fulfill their financial and other obligations dictated within this Lease; (v) Tenant shall become insolvent or
unable to pay its debts as they become due, or Tenant notifies Landlord that it anticipates either condition; (vi) Tenant takes any action to, or notifies
Landlord that Tenant intends to file a petition under any section or chapter of the United States Bankruptcy Code and rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder, or under any similar law or statute of the United States or any state thereof, or a petition shall be filed against Tenant under any such statute or
Tenant or any creditor of Tenant notifies Landlord that it knows such a petition will be filed or Tenant notifies Landlord that it expects such a petition to
be filed; (vii) a receiver or trustee shall be appointed for Tenant's leasehold interest in the Premises or for all or a substantial part of the assets of Tenant.

15.2. Remedies. In the event of any monetary default or breach by Tenant which such breach shall have continued for a period of three (3) days, and
any non-monetary default or breach which shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days, after the Landlord shall have given written notice by
certified or registered mail to the Tenant at its office address set forth in Section 1.1. hereof, then, in such event, Landlord shall have the option to pursue
any one or more of the following remedies (unless Tenant has begun the cure process for a non-monetary default or breach within thirty (30) days of
Landlord’s notice and is diligently pursuing such cure, but in no event shall the cure period exceed sixty (60) days):
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15.2.1. Landlord shall have the right to cancel and terminate this Lease and dispossess Tenant.

15.2.2. In regard to monetary defaults only that have continued for five (5) business days after written notice to Tenant from Landlord, Landlord shall
have the right without terminating or canceling this Lease to declare all amounts and rents due under this Lease for the remainder of the existing Lease
Term (or any applicable extension or renewal thereof) to be immediately due and payable, and thereupon all rents and other charges due hereunder to the
end ofthe initial term or any renewal term, if applicable, shall be accelerated. The amount accelerated shall be calculated as the net present value.

152.3. Landlord may elect to enter and repossess the Premises and relet the Premises for Tenant's account, holding Tenant liable in damages for all
reasonable expenses incurred in any such reletting and for any difference between the amount of rent received from such reletting and that is due and
payable under the terms of this Lease.

15.2.4. Landlord may enter upon the Premises and do whatever Tenant is obligated to do under the terms of this Lease. Tenant agrees to reimburse
Landlord on demand for any reasonable expenses which Landlord may incur in effecting compliance with Tenant's obligations under this Lease and
Tenant further agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for any damages resulting to the Tenant from such action.

15.2.5. All such remedies of Landlord shall be cumulative, and, in addition, Landlord may pursue any other remedies that may be permitted by law or in
equity. Forbearance by Landlord to enforce one or more of the remedies herein provided upon an event of default shall not be deemed or construed to be a
waiver of such default.

15.2.6. In addition to the specific remedy or remedies elected by Landlord in the event of Tenant's default, Landlord shall be entitled to recover from
Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant's default, including but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the Premises;
expenses of reletting, including necessary renovations and alterations of the Premises; all court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and paralegals' fees
and other costs and expenses; and that portion of the leasing commission paid by Landlord applicable to the unexpired term of this Lease. Unpaid
installments of rent or other sums shall bear interest from the due date thereof at ten percent (10%) per annum.

15.2.7 The remedies provided to Landlord shall be enforceable to the maximum extent not prohibited by applicable law, and the unenforceability of
any portion hereof shall not thereby render unenforceable any other portion. Notwithstanding any statement herein to the contrary, under no
circumstances shall Tenant be liable to Landlord for special, consequential, or exemplary damages.

153 . Abandonment of Premises. Landlord and Tenant agree that, for the purposes of this Lease, abandonment of the Premises shall have occurred if (i)
Tenant has been absent from the Premises for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days, (ii) the Annual Minimum Rent is not current, and (iii) ten (10) days
have elapsed since service of a three (3) day notice in writing by Landlord upon Tenant requiring payment of Annual Minimum Rent or the possession of
the Premises.

15.4. Waiver of Jury Trial. Landlord and Tenant hereby waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counter-claim brought by either of the parties
hereto against the other on any matter arising out of or in any way connected with this Lease.
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15.5. Holdover by Tenant. If Tenant should remain in possession of the Premises after the expiration of the Term then such holding over shall be
construed as a tenancy at sufferance. If Tenant notifies Landlord, in writing, at least ninety (90) day prior to lease expiration of its intent to holdover,
(“Holdover Notice”) then the holdover rate shall be at 150% of the then current Annual Minimum Rent (including Base Rent plus Operating Expenses)
for the first ninety (90) days and double the then current Annual Minimum Rent thereafter, and subject to all other conditions, provisions and obligations
of this Lease insofar as the same are applicable to a tenancy at sufferance. In the event Tenant does not provide the Holdover Notice at least ninety (90)
days’ prior to lease expiration, the holdover rate shall be double the then current Annual Minimum Rent.

15.6. Landlord's Right to Cure Defaults. The Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, cure at any time, without notice, any default by the Tenant
under this Lease; and, whenever the Landlord so elects, all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Landlord in curing such default, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees, together with interest on the amount of costs and expenses so incurred at the rate of twelve percent (12%)
per annum, shall be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord on demand and shall be recoverable as Additional Rent.

15.7. Waiver. The waiver by Landlord of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
other or any subsequent or continuing breach of the same. The subsequent acceptance or Rent hereunder by Landlord shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any preceding breach by Tenant of any term, covenant or condition of this Lease, other than the failure of Tenant to pay the particular rental so
accepted, regardless of Landlord's knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such Rent.

15.8. Landlord’s Default. In case Landlord shall fail or neglect to keep or perform any of the covenants or agreements in this Lease on the part of
Landlord to be kept and performed, and if said default shall continue for thirty (30) days (or such lesser reasonable period of time if emergency repairs or
replacements are required) following written notice thereof from Tenant to Landlord to cure the specific default or defaults, in addition to all other
remedies provided hereunder or now or hereafter afforded or provided by law or equity (which remedies shall be cumulative and non- exclusive), Tenant
may at its election perform such covenant, agreement or work for or on behalf of the Landlord or make good any such default, as more particularly
described in Section 7 of the Addendum to this Lease. Tenant's right to cure a default by Landlord under this paragraph shall not become effective if,
within such thirty (30) day period (or such lesser applicable period if emergency repairs or replacements are required, with simultaneous notice to the
Landlord), Landlord or Lender commences to cure the default and thereafter diligently performs such things as may be necessary to cure its default.

16. Miscellaneous Provisions.

16.1. Notice.

Any notice or demand from the Landlord to the Tenant or from the Tenant to the Landlord shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly delivered if
mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed, if to the Tenant, at the address of the Tenant or such other address as the Tenant shall have
last designated by written notice to the Landlord; if to the Landlord, at the address of the Landlord or such other address as the Landlord shall have last
designated by written notice to the Tenant. Notices shall be deemed delivered when mailed in the manner prescribed above.

Tenant’s Address for Notices:
10901 N. McKinley Drive
Tampa, FL 33612

Attn: Mr. James M. Long
V.P. of Operations
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Landlord’s Address for Notices:
University Business Center I, LLC
c/o Taurus Management Services, Inc.
610 N. Wymore Road, Suite 200
Maitland, FL 32751

16.2.  Estoppel Certificate.

The Tenant agrees that it will within ten (10) business days following written notice by the Landlord, execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Landlord a
statement in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and in full force and effect, or setting forth any such modifications, and the dates to which the
Annual Minimum Rent and all other payments due hereunder from the Tenant have been paid, the amount of the Security Deposit then remaining and the
amount of any payments paid by Tenant in advance, and stating whether or not, to the best knowledge of Tenant, the Landlord is in default in the
performance of any covenant, agreement or condition contained in this Lease and, if so, specifying each such default. The failure of the Tenant to
execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Landlord a statement in accordance with the provisions of this Section will constitute a breach of this Lease by
the Tenant.

16.3.  Applicable Law and Construction.

The laws of the State of Florida shall govern the validity, performance and enforcement of this Lease. The covenants and undertakings contained herein
are independent, not dependent covenants, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Lease shall not affect or impair any other
provision. All negotiations, considerations, representations and understandings between the parties are incorporated into this Lease. The headings of the
several articles and sections contained herein are for convenience and do not define, limit or construe the contents of such articles or sections.

16.4. Landlord’s Approval. Whenever, in this Lease, Tenant requests Landlord’s approval, such approval may not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed unless otherwise specified herein this Lease.

16.5 Subordination.

16.5.1. This Lease is subject and subordinate to any ground lease, mortgage, deed of trust, or any other hypothecation for security now or hereafter
placed upon the Property, and to any and all advances on the security thereof, and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and
extensions thereof. In confirmation of such subordination, the Tenant shall promptly execute any certificate that the Landlord may reasonably request.

16.5.2. At the option of the Landlord, or any successor Landlord or the holder of any mortgage affecting the Premises, the Tenant agrees that neither the

foreclosure of a mortgage affecting the Premises nor the institution of any suit, action, summary or other proceeding against the Landlord herein, or any
successor Landlord, or any foreclosure proceeding brought by the holder of any such mortgage to recover possession of the Property shall, by operation of
law or otherwise, result in the cancellation or termination of this Lease, and upon the request of Landlord, any successor Landlord or the holder of such
mortgage, Tenant covenants and agrees to execute an instrument in writing satisfactory to Landlord, successor Landlord, or to the holder of such

mortgage, or to the purchaser of the mortgaged premises in foreclosure, whereby Tenant attorns to such successor in interest. No mortgagee or purchaser at

foreclosure sale shall be liable to Tenant or subject to off sets or defenses arising as a result of acts or omissions of a prior Landlord.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the subordination of this Lease to any mortgage or deed of trust is expressly conditioned upon the holder or
beneficiary and trustees thereof expressly agreeing in the mortgage or deed of trust, or in a separate instrument that (i) Tenant will not be named or fined
in any proceeding (or trustees' sale) to enforce the mortgage or deed of trust unless such be required by law in order to perfect the proceeding (or sale), (ii)
enforcement of any mortgage or deed of trust shall not terminate this Lease or disturb Tenant in the possession and use of the Premises (except in the case
where Tenant is in default beyond the period, if any, provided in this Lease to remedy such default), (iii) any party succeeding to the interest of Landlord
as a result of the enforcement of any mortgage or deed of trust shall be bound to Tenant, and Tenant shall be bound to it, under all the terms, covenants,
and conditions of this Lease (including any concessions i.e. buildout allowance, free rent, etc.), for the balance of the term of this Lease, including
renewal terms, with the same force and effect as if such party were the original Landlord under this Lease and (iv) insurance proceeds and condemnation
awards shall be first applied to restore the Building and the Premises as required by the terms of this Lease.
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16.6.  Landlord's Liability.

The liability under this Lease of Landlord shall be limited to its interest in the Building of which the Premises are a part; and Tenant, its successors and
assigns, hereby waive all rights to proceed individually against Landlord or any of Landlord's partners, officers, directors or shareholders. The term
"Landlord", as used in this Section, shall mean only the owner or owners at the time in question of the fee simple title to the Property, and in the event of
any transfer of such title or interest Landlord (and in case of any subsequent transfers, the then grantor) shall be relieved from and after the date of such
transfer of all liability with respect to Landlord's obligations under this Lease, provided that any funds in the hands of Landlord (or then grantor at the
time of such transfer) in which Tenant has an interest, shall be delivered to the grantee. The obligations to be performed by Landlord shall, subject to the
foregoing, be binding on Landlord's successors and assigns only during their respective periods of ownership, and no successor Landlord shall have
liability to Tenant with respect to defaults hereunder occasioned by the acts or omissions of any predecessor Landlord.

16.7.  No Oral Changes.
This Lease shall not be changed or terminated orally, but only upon an agreement in writing signed by the parties hereto.

16.8.  No Representation by Landlord.

The Landlord and the Landlord's agents have made no representations, warranties or promises with respect to the Premises, Building or Property, except as
herein expressly set forth. This Lease specifically supersedes any prior written or oral communications between Landlord and Tenant or any of their
agents.

16.9.  Parking.

The Tenant shall be entitled to park in common with other tenants of the Property. Tenant agrees not to overburden the parking facilities and agrees to
cooperate with Landlord and other tenants in the use of the parking facilities. Providing that Tenant retains a parking ratio of at least four spaces per
1,000 square feet leased, Landlord reserves the right, in its absolute discretion, to allocate parking spaces among Tenant and other tenants of the Property,
or to assign parking.

16.10. Signs.

Tenant shall have the right to maintain throughout the term of this Lease a sign with Tenant's name thereon at or near the front entrance to the Premises at
a place designated by Landlord. Such sign shall be of a size, design, material and specification as shall meet the standards and criteria of Landlord. The
written consent and approval of Landlord shall be obtained prior to the installation of any sign. A sign for which the written approval of Landlord has not
been obtained may be removed by Landlord at Landlord's discretion.

In addition, Tenant shall be entitled to place its sign in a location designated by Landlord on the exterior of the Building and on the monument sign (at
Tenant's sole cost and expense), subject to the following terms and conditions: (i) Landlord shall have the right to designate design standards relating to
placement, design, size, material, color, and attachment, (ii) Tenant's signage shall comply with all applicable governmental requirements (applications
for approval, if required, shall be at Tenant's sole cost and expense), (iii) Tenant's sign shall be removed at Tenant's sole cost at the end of the Term or
earlier termination of the Lease and all damage promptly repaired at Tenant's cost, and (iv) the sign rights under this section shall not prohibit Landlord
from granting other tenants the right to install signage on the Property, however, not the Building so long as Tenant occupies the entire Building.
Landlord shall have the right to remove Tenant's name or sign from the Building, if, at any time during the Term, Tenant (a) assigns this Lease, or ( b)
ceases to occupy at least 10,000 rentable square feet of space in the Building. The signs will conform to Landlord's sign criteria. Tenant shall maintain
these signs in good condition and repair during the Term at Tenant's sole cost and expense.
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16.11. Recording of Lease.

Neither this Lease nor any memorandum or notice hereof shall be recorded by Tenant. However, it may be recorded by Landlord at Landlord's option. If
this Lease, or any memorandum or notice hereof is recorded by the Tenant, such recordation may be declared by Landlord as a material event of default
by Tenant hereunder.

16.12. Notice to Mortgagee and Opportunity to Cure.

Tenant agrees to give any mortgagee(s) of the Property, by certified mail, a copy of any Notice of Default served upon the Landlord, provided that prior to
such Notice, Tenant has been notified in writing (by way of Notice of Assignment of Rents and Leases, or otherwise), of the addresses of such
mortgagee(s). Tenant further agrees that if Landlord shall have failed to cure such default within the time provided for in this Lease, then the mortgagee(s)
shall have an additional thirty (30) days within which to cure such default, or if such default cannot be cured within that time, then such additional time
as may be necessary if within such thirty (30) days the mortgagee(s) has commenced and is diligently pursuing the remedies necessary to cure such
default (including, but not limited to, commencement of foreclosure proceedings, if necessary to effect such cure), in which event this Lease shall not be
terminated while such remedies are being so diligently pursued.

16.13. Costs and Expenses.
The prevailing party in any action or litigation shall be entitled to reimbursement from the other party for all reasonable costs and expenses, including
reasonable attorney fees, associated with such action or litigation.

16.14. Joint Obligation.
If there is more than one party or person executing this Lease as Tenant, the obligations hereunder imposed upon Tenant shall be joint and several among
all parties or persons executing this Lease as Tenant.

16.15. Time.
Time is of the essence of this Lease and each and all of'its provisions in which performance is a factor.

16.16  Brokerage Commission.

Tenant represents and warrants unto Landlord that Tenant has had no dealings with any broker or agent in connection with this Lease other than CBRE,
Inc. as Landlord’s representative and Newmark Grubb Knight Frank as Tenant’s representative, and Tenant covenants to pay, hold harmless and
indemnify Landlord from and against any and all cost (including attorneys' fees, paralegals' fees and costs including at appellate levels and post-
judgment proceedings), expense and liability for any compensation, commissions and charges claimed by any other agent or broker by or through Tenant
with respect to this Lease or the negotiation thereof.
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16.17. Quiet Possession.
Upon Tenant paying the Rent reserved hereunder and observing and performing all of the covenants, conditions and provisions on Tenant's part to be
observed and performed hereunder, Tenant shall have quiet possession of the Premises for the entire Term.

16.18. Addendum.

[This Section 16.18 shall apply only if the provision in Section 1.1 of this Lease referring to an Addendum is marked Yes.] See Exhibit F attached hereto
and fully incorporated herein (the "Addendum") for special provisions relating to this Lease. In the event any provision of the Addendum conflicts with
other provisions of this Lease, the conflicting provision of the Addendum shall control, but only to the extent of such conflict.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Landlord and the Tenant have hereunto executed this Lease as of the day and year first above written. Individuals signing
on behalfof an entity warrant that they have the authority to bind that entity. This Lease shall be binding upon the undersigned, and the successors, heirs,
executors and administrators of the undersigned, and shall inure to the benefit of the Landlord and Tenant, and their respective successors and assigns.

Signed, sealed and delivered LANDLORD:
in the presence of: University Business Center I, LLC,
a Florida limited liability company

Print Name: By: Taurus CD 162 Tampa Florida GP,LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company,
Its: Manager

Print Name:
By: Taurus Investment Holdings, LLC,
a Massachusetts limited liability company,
Its: Sole Member
By:
Linda G. Kassof, Manager
Date:
Signed, sealed and delivered TENANT:
in the presence of: Sypris Electronics, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company
Print Name: By:
Print
Name:
Its:
Print Name: Date:
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EXHIBIT "A" - Site Plan
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EXHIBIT "A-1" — Space Plan
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EXHIBIT "B"- Tenant Improvements Addendum
(Pursuant to Section 3.1 of this Lease)

Landlord shall improve the Premises in accordance with the preliminary plans and specifications prepared by Al Collaborative, Inc. and dated
January 20, 2015 (the “Tenant Improvements”), subject to final Construction Documents approved by both Landlord and Tenant. Tenant shall furnish
Landlord with all information Landlord requests to prepare final plans and specifications for the Tenant Improvements. After receipt of such information
from Tenant, Landlord shall cause final plans and specifications to be prepared and submit them to Tenant for Tenant's approval. Tenant shall have five
(5) calendar days in which to notify Landlord of any changes or modifications Tenant desires. If Landlord receives no such notice within said five (5) day
period, Tenant shall be deemed to have approved the final plans and specifications without change or modification. Any changes requested by Tenant
during said five (5) day period shall be made to the plans and specifications only upon Landlord's consent and approval thereto.

Upon approval of the final plans and specifications for the Tenant Improvements, each party shall initial a set thereof for identification and shall
complete and execute the Plan Approval Form attached hereto. If any changes to the final plans and specifications are required by any governmental
authority, Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing of the required changes. If Tenant does not object to such changes within five (5) days,
Tenant's approval shall be presumed. Any changes requested by Tenant after approval of the final plans and specifications or after commencement of
construction shall be subject to Landlord's approval and at Tenant's expense. Throughout the process of preparing final plans and specifications and of
obtaining the necessary governmental permits and approvals, each party shall act diligently and in good faith and shall cooperate with the other in
whatever manner may be reasonably required.

Following approval of the final plans and specifications, Landlord shall apply for and endeavor to obtain necessary building permits and other
governmental permissions for construction of the Tenant Improvements. Following issuance of such necessary building permits and other governmental
permissions, Landlord shall commence construction in accordance with the final plans and specification. Landlord shall endeavor to substantially
complete the Tenant Improvements and to tender the Premises to Tenant on or before the Commencement Date, as same may be extended in accordance
with the Lease.

By taking possession of the Premises, Tenant shall be deemed to have acknowledged that the Tenant Improvements have been completed in
accordance with the final plans and specifications and that the Premises are in good condition and repair subject only to written punch list items
identified by Tenant and acknowledged by Landlord and to latent defects not reasonably discoverable upon an inspection of the Premises. Landlord shall
repair such identified punch list items and identified latent defects with reasonable diligence.

Landlord's cost in planning, designing, permitting and constructing the Tenant Improvements, including all permitting fees, shall not exceed the
Tenant Improvement Allowance described in Section 1.1 of this Lease. Tenant shall pay any expenses exceeding the Tenant Improvement Allowance
prior to Tenant's occupancy of the Premises in accordance with Section 3.1 of this Lease. The Tenant Improvement Allowance may not be used for
equipment or furnishings. There shall be no rebate or refund for any unused portion of the Tenant Improvement Allowance; however, Tenant shall be
permitted to trade free rent to include Annual Base Rent and Additional Rent for additional Tenant Improvement dollars, not to exceed ten dollars
($10.00) per square foot.

Tenant shall be permitted access to the Premises six (6) months prior to occupancy for the purposes of installing equipment, lines, etc., so long as Tenant

does not interfere with the ongoing Tenant Improvements and coordinates, with at least 24 hours prior notice, with the General Contractor and/or Project
Manager to obtain access.
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PLAN APPROVAL FORM
Landlord and Tenant have reviewed the construction documents prepared by (insert architect) identified as (insert information from plans) dated
(insert date of drawings) and hereby approve said construction documents.

By signature below, Tenant authorizes Landlord to proceed with final pricing and construction of its Premises as outlined in the above referenced
construction documents.

Tenant hereby selects the following finishes:

Carpet:

Paint:

VCT:

Tile:

Doors:

Other:

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

TENANT:

By:

Signature
Printed Name
Title:
Date:

LANDLORD:

By:  Taurus Management Services, LLC
Its authorized Agent

By:

Date:
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EXHIBIT "C" — Rules & Regulations
ACCIDENTS AND DAMAGES - In the event of accidental damage to the Premises, Tenant should immediately notify the Landlord.

ADMITTANCE TO LEASED PREMISES — Subject to the provisions of Section 7.1.4 of the Lease, with twenty four (24) hours’ notice to Tenant (except
in the case of an emergency), Property Management, maintenance, security, and other service providers and agents authorized by the Landlord, shall be
allowed admittance to the Premises to accomplish their intended assignments.

ADVERTISING MEDIUM - Tenant should not use any advertising medium, including without limitation, flashing lights or search lights, which may be
heard or experienced outside of the Premises without the prior written consent of the Landlord. Tenant is encouraged to use the name of the Property in all
advertising done within the geographical area in which the Property is located.

BICYCLES AND OTHER VEHICLES - Bicycles and other vehicles should not be permitted inside the Building or on the sidewalk, and may only be
permitted outside in areas designated by Landlord.

COMMON AREA - The sidewalks, entries, passages, corridors, halls, lobbies, stairways, elevators, and other common facilities of the Property shall be
controlled by Landlord, and should not be obstructed by Tenant or used for any purposes other than ingress or egress to and from the Premises. Tenant
should not place any item in any of such locations, whether or not any such item constitutes an obstruction, without the prior written consent of Landlord.
Landlord will have the right to remove any obstruction or any such item without notice to Tenant and at the expense of Tenant.

DELIVERIES - All deliveries shall be made to the rear of the Premises unless otherwise directed or approved in writing by the Landlord. The Tenant
should never permit or suffer any truck to park in the parking areas of the Property designated for customers' use. The Tenant should never permit any
overnight parking of any vehicle to occur on the Property.

EMERGENCY CONTACT PROCEDURES - Tenant should provide in a timely manner to Landlord upon request name(s) of employees and/or agents to
be contacted by Landlord for emergency purposes whether during or after operating hours. Such information should be kept current and accurate at all
times by Tenant. Emergency policies and procedures may be developed, issued and revised from time to time by Landlord at Landlord's discretion, which
shall become an integral part of these Rules and Regulations and the Lease to which they refer.

EMPLOYEES AND VISITORS - Tenant will be responsible for all behavior and adherence to all building Rules and Regulations by any of Tenant's
employees, visitors and agents. Tenant agrees to conduct Tenant's business consistent with reputable business standards and practices.

EXCESSIVE NOISE AND ANIMALS - No animals, except seeing eye dogs, shall be allowed in stores, offices, halls, corridors and elevators of the
Property. No person shall disturb the occupants of the Building or neighboring buildings by the use of any radio or musical instrument or by making loud
or improper noises. Tenant will keep all mechanical apparatus free of vibration and noise which may be transmitted beyond the confines of the Premises.
Landlord agrees and acknowledges that an air compressor and vacuum pump are an integral part of Tenant’s business and agrees that this equipment
maybe placed outside near the northeast corner of the Premises so long as such equipment is operated, maintained and used in such a manner so as not to
disturb other tenants of the Property. If the Tenant’s operation, maintenance or use of the foregoing equipment interferes with another tenant’s quiet
enjoyment of the Property, then Tenant shall take measures to attenuate the disturbance to other tenants.

HAZARDOUS OPERATING AND ITEMS — Tenant shall not install or operate any steam or gas engine or boiler in the Premises without Landlord's prior
written consent. The use of oil, gas or flammable liquids for heating, lighting or any other purpose is prohibited.

HOUSEKEEPING - Unless otherwise stated, the interior of the Premises is the responsibility of each Tenant to maintain in a safe and clean matter. All

carpeting and tiled areas are to be cleaned periodically. The perimeter area of the Premises space, which includes front and rear entrances and adjacent
areas should be kept neat and clean.
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KEYS - If the need arises for the Tenant to change the lock for the Premises, the re-keying should be coordinated and handled by the Property Manager.

MOVE IN/MOVE OUT - At the termination of the Lease, Landlord will inspect the Premises to see that everything is in satisfactory condition. Any
deficiencies, excepting normal wear and tear, will be addressed as provided in the Lease.

ODORS - Tenant should not cause or permit objectionable odors to emanate or be dispelled from the Premises.
OVERHEAD DOORS - All repairs, service and preventative maintenance are Tenant's responsibility.

PARKING - If the Tenant has customers or visitors who create an overload problem with parking, the Tenant's cooperation is expected in asking visitors
to park in specified areas.

RADIO AND TELEVISION - No aerials or satellite dishes shall be erected on the roof of the Building or exterior walls of the Premises or Building, or on
the grounds of the Property without the prior written consent of the Landlord in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion. Any aerials or satellite dishes so
installed without such written consent shall be subject to removal without notice at any time at the expense of Tenant and may, in Landlord's discretion,
be deemed a material default of Tenant under the Lease.

REFUSE - Dumpsters are provided for normal amounts of trash and waste as experience has shown the Building to require. If Tenant's business operation
generates excess trash, or a considerable amount of cardboard boxes, it will be necessary for Tenant to arrange for an additional service or to pay the
excess cost if the arrangements are made by Landlord. It is the Tenant’s responsibility to break down any boxes that it disposes of. Should Landlord

choose to furnish containers for recycling, Tenant will use its best efforts to sort its refuse.

SECURITY - Security and maintenance personnel, as well as janitorial contractors are not permitted to unlock premises for Tenant's employees. All
individual security/burglar alarm systems should have the written consent of the Landlord.

SOLICITATION - Lessor reserves the right to restrict, control or prohibit canvassing, soliciting and peddling within the Property.

USE OF WATER FIXTURES - Water closets and other water fixtures should not be used for any purpose other than that for which they are intended, and
any damage resulting to them from misuse on the part of Tenant shall be paid for by Tenant.

WINDOWS - Window treatments visible from the exterior of the Premises shall require the prior written approval of the Landlord.
Tenant agrees that Landlord may amend, modify, delete or add new and additional reasonable rules and regulations for the use and care of the Premises,

the Building, the common areas and the Property, and Tenant agrees to comply with all such Rules and Regulations. Landlord shall promptly provide
Tenant a copy of any amendments or modifications to the Rules and Regulations.
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EXHIBIT "D" — Legal Description

University Center I - 3011 University Center Drive, Tampa, Florida
University Center II - 10441 University Center Drive, Tampa, Florida
University Center IV - 10421 University Center Drive, Tampa, Florida

PARCEL 1:

A portion of Lots 35A, 36A and 37A, TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION, in Section 17, Township 28 South, Range 19 East, according to the map or
plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 25, Page 64, public records of Hillsborough County, Florida, being more particularly described as follows:

From the Northeast corner of Lot 30 of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION, run thence S.00°18'10"W., 1955.45 feet along the East boundary of
Lots 30 and 35 of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Northeast corner of said Lot 35A and the Point of Beginning; thence continue
S.00°18°10"W., 340.96 feet; thence N.89°46'00" W., 613.40 feet to the centerline of University Center Drive (Private Roadway); thence S.00°18'10"W,
60.00 feet along said centerline; thence N.89°46'00"W., 278.53 feet; thence N.00°11'44"E., 272.80 feet; thence S.89°46'00"E., 319.04 feet; thence
N.00°18'10"E., 128.16 feet to the North boundary of said Lot 36A; thence S.89°46'00"E., 573 .40 feet along the North boundary of said Lots 36A and
35A to the Point of Beginning.

PARCEL 2:

A portion of Lots 37A, 38A and 39A TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION in Section 17, Township 28 South, Range 19 East, according to the map or
plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 25, Page 64, public records of Hillsborough County, Florida, being more particularly described as follows:

From the Northeast corner of the Lot 30 of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION, run thence S.00°18'10"W., 2591.58 feet along the East boundary
of Lots 30, 35 and 35A of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Northerly right-of-way line of Bougainvillea Avenue; thence
N.89°48'16"W., 891.49 feet along said Northerly right-of-way line to a Point of Beginning; thence continue N.89°48'16"W., 666.10 feet along said
Northerly right-of-way line; thence N.00°18'10"E., 509.00 feet to the centerline of University Center Drive (Private Roadway); thence S.89°46'00"E.,
665.15 feet along said centerline; thence S.00°11'44"W. 508.55 feet to the Point of Beginning.

PARCEL 3:

A portion of Lots 35A, 36A and 37A, TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION, in Section 17, Township 28 South, Range 19 East, according to the map or
plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 25, Page 64, of the public records of Hillsborough County, Florida, being more particularly described as follows:

From the Northeast corner of Lot 30 of said Temple Terraces Subdivision; run thence S.00°18'10"W., 1955.45 feet along the East boundary of Lots 30
and 35 of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Northeast corner of said Lot 35A; thence continue S.00°18'10"W., 312.75 feet along the East
boundary of Lot 35A of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Point of Beginning; thence continue S.00°18'10"W., 323.38 feet along the
East boundary of Lot 35A of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Northerly right-of-way line of Bougainvillea Avenue; thence
N.89°48'16"W., 891.49 feet along said Northerly right-of-way line; thence N.00°11'44"E., 235.75 feet; thence S.89°46'00"E., 278.53 feet to the
centerline of University Center Drive; thence N.00°18'10"E., 63.90 feet along said centerline of University Center Drive; thence S.89°4321"E., 278.93
feet; thence N.00°00'00"E., 23.14 feet; thence S.90°00'00"E., 334.60 feet to the East boundary of said Lot 35A, to the Point of Beginning.

Less the following described parcel:

From the Northeast corner of Lot 30 of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION; run thence S.00°18'10"W., 1955.45 feet along the East boundary of
Lots 30 and 35, of said Temple Terraces Subdivision to the Northeast corner of said Lot 35A; thence continue S.00°18'10"W.,312.75 feet along the East
boundary of Lot 35A of said TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION to the Point of Beginning; thence N.90°00'00"W., 334.60 feet; thence
S.00°00'00"W., 23.14 feet; thence N.89°43'31"W., 278.93 feet to the centerline of University Center Drive (Private Roadway); thence S.00°18'10"W.,
3.90 feet along said centerline; thence S.89°46'00"E., 613.40 feet to the East boundary of'said Lot 35A; thence N.00°18'10"E., 28.21 feet along the East
boundary ofsaid Lot 35A to the Point of Beginning.
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PARCEL 4:

A Non-Exclusive Easement for Ingress and Egress, Utilities, and Drainage Facilities, as the benefit of Parcels 1, 2 and 3 as set forth in that certain
Agreement for Access and Utility Easement recorded in Official Records Book 5246, Page 40; as affected by Assignment and Assumption of Rights
recorded in Official Records Book 14538, Page 576, of the public records of Hillsborough County, Florida, being further described as follows:

The South 80.00 feet of the North 168.16 feet of Lots 37A,38A,39A and 40A, Less the West 75.00 feet of said Lot 40A taken for road right-of-way
purposes; and the West 80.00 feet of Lot 36A, Less the South 10.00 feet thereof taken for road right-of-way purposes; all in Temple Terraces
Subdivision in Section 17, Township 28 South, Range 19 East, according to the map or plat thereof as the same is recorded in Plat Book 25, Page 64 of
the public records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

PARCEL 5:

Perpetual Non-Exclusive Easements for the benefit of Parcels 1,2 and 3 as set forth in Declaration of Stormwater Drainage Easement and Maintenance
Agreement recorded in Official Records Book 8276, Page 1488.

THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED LANDS BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Lot 35A, and portions of Lots 36A,37A, 38A and 39A, TEMPLE TERRACES SUBDIVISION in Section 17, Township 28 South, Range 19 East,
according to the map or plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 25, Page 64, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, being more
particularly described as follows:

From the Northeast corner of Lot 30 of said Temple Terraces Subdivision, run thence South 00°18'10" West, 1955.45 feet along the East boundary of
Lots 30 and 35 of said Temple Terraces Subdivision to the Northeast corner of said Lot 35A and the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continue South
00°18'10" West, 636.13 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line of Bougainvillea Avenue; thence North 89°48'16" West, 1557.59 feet along said
Northerly right-of-way line; thence North 00°18'10" East, 509.00 feet to the centerline of University Center Drive (Private Roadway); thence South
89°45'59" East, 984.19 feet along said centerline; thence North 00°18'10" East, 128.16 feet to the North boundary of said Lot 36A; thence South
89°46'00" East, 573.40 feet along the North boundary of said Lots 36A and 35A to the POINT OF BEGINNING.
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EXHIBIT "E"- Commencement Date Agreement

COMMENCEMENT DATE CONFIRMATION

DECLARATION BY LANDLORD AND TENANT AS TO DATE OF DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF POSSESSION OF PREMISES

Attached to and made part of the Lease dated the day of ,20__, entered into and by UNIVERSITY BUSINESS CENTERI, LLC.
as Landlord and ,as Tenant for Suite ___ in the Building known University Business Center IV, 10421 University Center
Dr., Tampa, Florida.

Landlord and Tenant do hereby declare that possession of the Premises was accepted by Tenant on the day of ,20__ . The Premises
required to be constructed and finished by Landlord in accordance with the provisions of the Lease have been satisfactorily completed by Landlord and
accepted by Tenant. The Lease is now in full force and effect, and as of the date hereof, Landlord has fulfilled all of its obligations under the Lease.

The Lease Commencement Date is hereby established as
The Rent Commencement Date is hereby established as
The Lease Expiration Date is

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

TENANT:

By:

Signature

Printed Name
Title:

Date:

LANDLORD:

By: Taurus Management Services, LLC
Its authorized Agent

By:

Date:

Landlord
Tenant
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EXHIBIT "F" - Addendum

1 . Operating Expenses. Management Fees shall not exceed 5% of the gross income annually. Additionally, Property Manager and Administrative
support salaries shall not increase more than 5% per year on a non-cumulative basis.

2. HVAC Maintenance and Repair. Landlord, shall provide all normal routine and customary maintenance (Normal PM) for the existing HVAC units,
which shall be included in Tenant’s Operating Expenses. The costs to replace any units shall be considered “capital” and not included in Operating
Expenses. Costs for repairs shall be included in Operating Expenses and limited to the amounts specified below on the following units until units are
replaced, at which point all repair costs will be included in Operating Expenses for the replaced unit(s).

Year Installed # of Units Major Component Repair Limit (until
replaced)

2002 10 units $250 per unit per year
2003-2004 5 units $250 per unit per year
2005 9 units $500 per unit per year
Normal PM is defined as:

e Filters

e Belts

o Cleaning

e Recharging

o Tightening of components

e Predictive actions (IR, etc.)

In light of Tenant’s high air-quality requirements, Tenant shall specify the type of Filters to be utilized, at Tenant’s sole expense to the extent same
exceeds Landlord’s usual and customary costs.

3 . Security Fencing. Tenant shall be permitted to install security fencing for its equipment, subject to Landlord’s approval of the location and
specifications and subject to all applicable government codes.

4. Option to Renew. So long as Tenant is not in default of the Lease beyond any applicable notice and cure period, Tenant shall have two (2) options to
renew the Term beyond the Expiration Date for a period of five (5) years each, at the then current Fair Market Value (“FMV”), with 180 days prior written
notice (“Option Exercise Notice”) to Landlord. In the event Tenant does not properly exercise its Option to Renew, then Tenant’s Option to Renew shall
be null and void and of no further force or effect. Fair Market Value shall mean the average annual rental rate then being charged for comparable space in
comparable buildings, comparably located for which market rate is being determined. If Tenant and Landlord cannot agree within forty-five (45) days to
the FMYV, then each party shall select an MAI appraiser to determine FM V. If, after thirty (30) days the two appraisers cannot agree on FMV, then together
they shall select a third appraiser and the FMV will be the opinion of the third appraiser. Each party shall pay the fee of its appraiser and the third
appraiser's fee will be split 50/50.

This Option to Renew is granted by Landlord to the Tenant originally named in this Lease and to no other, and is personal as to such entity and
shall not be exercised or assigned, voluntarily or involuntarily, by or to anyone or any other entity. Any assignment of this Option to Renew without
Landlord’s prior written consent shall be null and void. Landlord’s consent to an assignment of the Lease shall not also constitute consent to assignment
ofthe Option to Renew unless the Option to renew is expressly included in the Landlord’s consent

Landlord
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5. Right of First Refusal. So long as Tenant is not in default of its Lease, Tenant shall have the one-time Right of First Refusal on any available space in
Buildings I (3011 University Center Drive) & Building II (10441 University Center Drive), subject to existing Tenants’ rights and so long as Landlord
still owns said properties. Landlord shall notify Tenant, in writing, when it has a bona fide, prospective Tenant for the available premises. Tenant shall
have five (5) days to accept or reject the proposed expansion, under the same terms and conditions as for the prospective tenant. If Tenant does not accept
the proposed expansion within five days, the offer shall be deemed to have been rejected by Tenant and Landlord shall have no further obligation to
Tenant. In no event shall the total term be less than five (5) years for the existing and expansion premises.

6. Termination Option. Tenant shall have the option to terminate and cancel the Lease, effective as the last day of the 108th full calendar month of the
Term (the “Early Termination Date”), which right is contingent upon Tenant paying to Landlord the “Termination Consideration” (as defined below). To
exercise such termination option, Tenant must deliver to Landlord written notice of Tenant's exercise of such option (the “Early Termination Notice”) at
least twelve (12) months’ prior to the Early Termination Date. Payment of the Termination Consideration to shall be paid to Landlord with Early
Termination Notice.

As used herein, the “Termination Consideration” shall mean an amount equal to the sum of: (A) the unamortized portion of the brokerage commissions
paid or incurred by Landlord in connection with the Lease, plus (B) the unamortized portion of all Rent that was abated, plus (C) the unamortized Tenant
Improvement costs and plus (D) two full months of Annual Minimum Rent . The amounts specified in clauses (A) through (C) above shall be amortized at
eight percent (8%) APR over the Term, and the unamortized portion thereof shall be determined based upon the unexpired portion of the Term as of the
Early Termination Date had the Lease not been so canceled pursuant to this Section. If Tenant properly and timely exercises the termination option in this
Section, the Lease shall terminate at midnight on the Early Termination Date as if the Lease were scheduled to expire in accordance with its terms as of
then, and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Tenant shall be required to surrender the Premises to Landlord on or prior to the Early
Termination Date in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Lease.

7. Repairs and Maintenance/Self-Help. Landlord shall be in default under this Lease if Landlord fails to perform any of Landlord’s obligations under
this Lease which failure materially precludes Tenant from the use and quiet enjoyment of the Premises and such failure continues for more than (i) 30 days
after Landlord receives written notice from Tenant to Landlord specifying the default, or if the default is of a nature that it cannot be completely cured
within the 30 day period, if Landlord fails to begin curing the default within the 30 day period or fails thereafter to cure the default within the time
reasonably necessary to do so, or (ii) in the event such failure to perform Landlord’s obligations under this Lease results in actual, material physical
damage to the Premises, such shorter period of time of not less than ten (10) days as shall be reasonably appropriate under the circumstances, or if the
default is of a nature that it cannot be completely cured within such period, if Landlord fails to begin curing the default within ten (10) days from
Landlord's receipt of the notice of default. In the event of any uncured Landlord default of its repair and maintenance obligations with respect to the
Premises, Tenant may, in accordance with the terms of this Section and within all applicable cure periods as set forth herein, take whatever actions are
reasonably necessary to perform the obligation of Landlord specified in the default notice and if Tenant, in connection with such actions, makes any
expenditures, the out-of-pocket costs (the "Reimbursable Costs") actually expended by Tenant in compliance with this Lease and applicable laws to cure
such defaults shall be reimbursed by Landlord to Tenant within 30 days of rendition of a statement to Landlord for them with copies of paid receipts
therefore and lien waivers from all lienors which provided labor, materials and /or services in regard to such repairs (the "Reimbursable Documents"). If
Landlord fails to pay the Reimbursable Costs within thirty (30) days after Landlord has received the Reimbursable Documents and if Tenant is not in
default of this Lease at the time, and if Tenant has received a final, nonappealable judgment for damages against Landlord for the Reimbursable Costs,
then Tenant shall have the right to deduct the unpaid amount of the judgment for the Reimbursable Costs from the rent to become due under this Lease
until fully credited o, if the Lease has expired or been terminated prior to the entry of such judgment, to collect such sums from Landlord. All work
performed by Tenant under this article must be performed at a reasonable and competitive cost. If any proposed actions by Tenant will affect the
electrical, plumbing, HVAC, mechanical or other systems of the Building, or the roof or structural integrity of the Building, Tenant shall use only those
contractors used by Landlord in the construction of the Building to work on the Building’s systems or structure, unless those contractors are unwilling or
unable to perform the work, in which event Tenant may utilize the services of another qualified, licensed and insured contractor subject to Landlord’s
prior written approval, not to be unreasonable withheld. In exercising any rights under this section, Tenant shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
minimize interference with the rights of other tenants to use their respective premises in the Building.

Landlord
Tenant
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8 . Generator. Tenant may utilize the existing generator on site that was left behind by a previous tenant. The Tenant shall be solely and fully
responsible for all repairs, maintenance, certifications, inspections, compliance, etc. for the generator. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has made no
warranties regarding the condition of the generator and Landlord shall have no liability for the use or condition of the generator.

9. Controlling Agreement. All terms, covenants, obligations and conditions in this Addendum which conflict with a like provision in this Lease shall
be controlling and supersede any like provision in the Lease.

Landlord
Tenant
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EXHIBIT “G” — Operating Expense Exclusions

Wages, salaries, fees and fringe benefits paid to employees who are not assigned to the operation, management maintenance or repair of the Building,
(including any accounting or clerical personnel and other overhead-expenses of Landlord) or administrative (except for property assistants assigned to
the Building) and executive personnel or officers, partners, sharcholders, or directors of Landlord or of Landlord's managing agent above the grade of
building manager;

Expenses in connection with services or other benefits which are not to the benefit of Tenant;

The cost of any work or service performed for or facilities furnished to any tenant of the University Center Park buildings owned by Landlord (the
“Business Park™) to a greater extent or in a manner more favorable to such tenant than that performed or furnished to Tenant;

The cost of alterations, renovations or improvements for rentable space in the Business Park;

Loan payments, charges for depreciation of the Business Park or equipment and any interest or other financing charge or refinancing costs;

All costs relating to activities for the solicitation and execution of leases of space in the Business Park, including legal fees, real estate brokers'
commissions, expenses, fees, and advertising, moving expenses, design fees, rental concessions, rental credits, tenant improvement allowances, lease

assumptions or any other cost and expenses incurred in the connection with the leasing of any space in the Building;

Violations of legal requirements in the construction of the Business Park or in the Business Park’s equipment, or by reason of any changes in
governmental laws, rules or restrictions occurring during the term of the Lease;

Other than Tenant’s initial tenant improvements, costs associated with installing sprinklers in the building or modifications required by the Americans
with Disabilities Act, in accordance with Section 13 of this Lease;

The cost of any repair made by Landlord because of any fire or other casualty or the total or partial destruction or condemnation of the Business Park or
any portion of the Business Park to the extent Landlord receives compensation therefor through insurance or condemnation proceeds;

Any increase in an insurance premium to the extent that such increase is caused or attributable to the use, occupancy or act of another tenant;
Any cost for which Landlord is reimbursed by insurance proceeds, warranties, service contracts, condemnation proceeds or otherwise;

The cost of any repairs, alterations, additions, changes, replacements, renovations, and other items which under generally accepted accounting principles
are properly classified as capital expenditures;

Any operating expense representing an amount paid to a related corporation, entity,- or person which is in excess of the amount which would be paid in
the absence of such relationship; or any amounts paid to any person, firm or corporation related to or otherwise affiliated with Landlord or any general
partner, officer, director or shareholder of Landlord or any of the foregoing, to the extent the same exceeds arms-length competitive prices paid in Tampa,
FL for similar services or goods provided;

Landlord
Tenant
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The cost of overtime or other expense to Landlord in curing its defaults or performing work expressly provided in this Lease to be borne at Landlord's
expense;

Inheritance, gift, transfer, franchise, excise, net income and profit taxes or capital levies imposed on Landlord;
Ground rent or similar payments to a ground lessor;

Cost of installing, operating and maintaining any specialty service operated by Landlord, such as a luncheon, athletic or recreational club in the Business
Park;

Costs and expenses incurred in connection with any transfer of an interest in the Business Park or the Land;
Costs or expenses necessitated by or resulting from the gross negligence of Landlord, its agents or employees.
Reserves for repairs, maintenance and replacements.

Costs relating to maintaining Landlord's existence, either as a corporation, partnership or other entity, such as trustee's fees, annual fees, partnership
organization or administration expenses, deed recordation expenses, legal and accounting fees (other than with respect to Business Park operations);

Interest or penalties arising by reason of Landlord's failure to timely pay any Taxes or Operating Expenses;
Costs incurred to remove any hazardous or toxic wastes, materials or substances from either the Building or the Land.

Legal expenses arising out of the construction, operation, use, occupation, or maintenance of the Business Park, or the enforcement of provisions of any
agreements affecting the Business Park, including this Lease;

Interest or penalties imposed on Landlord as a result of failure to pay real estate taxes in a timely manner;

Legal fees incurred in the negotiation of leases with other Business Park tenants or in litigation with other Business Park tenants.
Costs or expenses incurred in connection with any bankruptcy proceedings;

Mortgage refinancing costs, including attorneys' fees, title insurance premiums, and recording costs.

Landlord
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EXHIBIT “H” — 2017 Operating Expense Break Down

ESCALATABLE EXPENSES 49,386 SF
2017 2017
Cleaning - Gen. Conltract 5 =
Windaw Cleaning $  2.150.00
Cleaning - Other 5 100.00
Total Cleaning $  2,250.00 0.05
Repair [ Mantenance Payrol 5 10,200.00
Electrical 5 1,500.00
HVAC $  4,800.00
HVAC Repairs $  4,000.00
Plumbing $ 45000
Rool Repairs $ 4237.00
Locks & Keys 5 50.00
Exterminating $ 1,020.00
Repair [ Maint. Supplies 5 150.00
RA&M Supplies - Bubs $ 10000
Repair / Maint, Other $  1,200.00
Total Repairs & Maintenance 5 27.707.00 0.56
Total Utltes 5 = 0.00
Sweepng $  1,480.00
Parking Lot / Garage Repair $ 1,500.00
Landscaping § 17,745.00
Total Roads& Grounds § 20,685.00 042
Fire Safety (contract & repairs) S 2,000.00
Life Safety - Tel e $ __1.500.00
Total Security 5 3.590.00 o.07
Real Property Tax § 60,396.00
Total Taxes 5 60,396.00 1.22
Property Insurance $ 28,599.00
Environmantal Insurance 5 127500
Total insurance $ 29.874.00 0.80
Property Manager Salary $ 648000
Administrative Payroll $  4,800.00
MR Data Processing 5 200.00
Postage 5 60.00
Telephane s 360.00
General Office Expense 5 600.00
Admin Other Expenses $ 600.00
License/PermitFiing Fees - 500.00
Total Ganeral Adminssirative § 13,600.00 028
Management Fee (5%) $ 2066086
Total Managemenl Fees 5 2066086 0.42
TOTAL ESCALATABLE EXPENSES $ 178,762.86 162
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EXHIBIT “I” — HVAC Unit Description

Property Condition Assessment ECS Project 41-1484-A
University IV Office Building
Tampa, Florida

Maintenance Program [ | | | x ] |
Comments:

Heating and cooling for the building is provided by 22 roof-top package units
(RTUs) ranging from 4 to 12 tons and two split units with capacities of 1.5 and
3 tons. The HVAC systems are maintained quarterly by Air Mechanical &
Service Corp. The following table is a breakdown of the HVAC equipment
observed by ECS.

Suite # Unit # Tons Date age Replace in
100 #8 split 3 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#5 4 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#3 & 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#1N & 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#4 7.5 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#1S 7.5 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#IW 8.5 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#2 10 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#1 10 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#6 12 2002 13 2017
100 RTU#7 7.5 2005 10 2020
300 #8 split 1.5 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#4 4 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#6 5 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#5 & 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#1 7.5 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#3 7.5 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#2 10 2005 10 2020
300 RTU#7 13 2005 10 2020
400 RTU#1 5 2004 11 2019
500 RTU#3 & 2003 12 2018
500 RTU#4 7.5 2003 12 2018
500 RTU#2 7.5 2003 12 2018
500 RTU#1 & 2004 11 2019

Recommendations:

No immediate needs are identified. The HVAC systems appear to be
(and are also reported to be) in functional condition. The EUL of the air
handling units and condenser units is 15 years. The EUL of the rooftop
units is 15 years.

Landlord
Tenant
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EXHIBIT “J” — Rent Abatement Example After Exchanged for TI Money
FOR EXAMPLE PURPOSES ONLY

In the event Tenant exchanges $10.00 per square foot of free rent dollars for Tenant Improvement dollars ($493,860), the revised rent schedule for the
initial 12 months would be as follows:

Base ERent Expense Expense Net 700 Sales Total
Month Rent Abatement Pass Thru  Abatement Pavment Tax Pavment
1 5 5 (5247263) 5 1489811 5§ [14:898.11}'3 - 5 - 5 -
2 52.472.63 (32.472.63) 14.898.11 [14:398.11}'5 - 5 - 5 -
3 52.472.63 (52.472.63) 14898 11 [14:398.11}'5 - 3 - 5 -
4 352.472.63 (52.472.63) 14898 .11 [14:898.11}r5 - 3 - 5 -
3 32.472.63 (32.472.63) 14898 11 [14:898.11}'5 - 5 - 5 -
6 32.472.63 (29.513235) 14898 .11 - rS 3785749 5§ 263002 5 40350751
7 32.472.63 - 148908 .11 - rS 6737074 5 471595 5 T2086.69
8 32.472.63 - 14898 11 = 6737074 5§ 4713593 5§ 7208669
9 32.472.63 - 14808 11 . ot 6737074 5 471393 5 7208660
10 52.472.63 - 14898 11 - ' 6737074 5§ 471595 5§ 7208669
11 32.472.63 - 14898 11 - s 6737074 5§ 471393 5§ 7208669
12 32.472.63 - 14.898.11 - rS 6737074 5§ 471595 5 T2086.69
5 629671.56 5{291.87640) 5 17877732 5 (74490.53) 5 44208193 § 30943574 5§ 473.027.67
Landlord
Tenant
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Exhibit 31(i).1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey T. Gill, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

[ have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sypris Solutions, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely

to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

August 17,2016 By: /s/ Jeffrey T. Gill

Jeftrey T. Gill
President & Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31(i).2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Anthony C. Allen, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sypris Solutions, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely

to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

August 17,2016 By: /s/ Anthony C. Allen

Anthony C. Allen
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Sypris Solutions, Inc. (the Company) on Form 10-Q for the period ending July 3, 2016 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the Report), each of the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f2002, in his capacity as an officer of Sypris Solutions, Inc., that to his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 0of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
Date: August 17,2016 By: /s/ Jeffrey T. Gill
Jeffrey T. Gill
President & Chief Executive Officer
Date: August 17,2016 By: /s/ Anthony C. Allen

Anthony C. Allen
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authenticating, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to Sypris
Solutions, Inc. and will be retained by Sypris Solutions, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The foregoing certification is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q and shall not be considered
filed as part of the Form 10-Q.
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